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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFUHREE

(For the year ended 31 December) (BE+-A=+—HI1EFE)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY A FHEHE
RMB’000 AREEFIT
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTNE —T-TF T T ZB-=F
Revenue WA 1,247,355 1,782,447 2,406,212 3,097,511 4,150,509
Gross profit EF 293,435 437,582 580,594 749,150 988,400
Profit before tax BREE AT T 181,511 281,474 371,533 420,102 626,506
Profit attributable to owners VN/NCIE 2SN
of the Company FEAE A 151,067 216,419 290,850 328,644 490,587
Basic earnings per share (RMB)  EMRERZAF (ARE) 0.271 0.363 0.472 0.521 0.752
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) ~ GRESERF (ARE)  NATEA NATEA 0471 0.521 0.737
Non-current assets FERBEE 135,959 359,432 1,440,111 1,697,359 2,834,179
Current assets TENVEE 989,836 1,377,596 1,510,053 2,366,323 3,466,554
Non-current liabilities EREEE 60,712 197,072 248,955 577,652 1,323,185
Current liabilities mEEE 226,232 476,856 1,173,010 1,634,118 2,378,436
Net assets BEFE 838,851 1,063,100 1,528,199 1,851,912 2,599,112

REVENUE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The year 2013 was marked by the official unveiling of the massive
photovoltaic application market in China. The central government launched
a slew of policies in a high-profile, extensive and forceful manner to
support the healthy development of the photovoltaic industry. Under such
policies, distributed photovoltaic grid was specified as focal point of China’s
photovoltaic application development in the future. Thanks to our proactive
actions and outstanding performance in distributed photovoltaic field, the
Group is expected to seize vast opportunities in the upcoming surge of
distributed photovoltaic developments.

As of 31 December 2013, the Group’s overall business remained a rapid
growth. The Group’s turnover recorded a year-on-year growth of 34.0% to
RMB 4,150,509,000, while profits attributable to equity holders amounted
to RMB 490,587,000, featuring a growth of 49.3% over last year. The Board
recommended distributing a final dividend of HK$ 0.09 per share.

1. RAPIDLY GROWING RENEWABLE ENERGY
BUSINESS

The renewable energy business with photovoltaic system integration as
its core is so important that it accounts for up to 60.6% of the Group’s
overall revenue. In 2013, the Group made full use of its industry
influence and achieved integration of wide variety of resources on
the industry chain, and such achievements were enabled through
establishing long-lasting and close partnership with large companies in
the industry, undertaking a large number of EPC projects and initiating
cooperation with renowned companies. By virtue of our experienced
work force in distributed photovoltaic applications and our extensive
expertise in such sector, the Group has started to undertake EPC
projects for development of large ground photovoltaic power plants. By
making great efforts in the previous year, the Group has shaped itself
a highly competitive brand name in photovoltaic system integration
sector.

AAERRREFE  MAREAKEBE—T
—ZF T A=t —HIEZREFEE -

2013 % - FEELIREAMIZHANERIEFH
o RIS RERRERRE - DABFER
B KRR RANEWEET —RIIEE - &
o DEEIRIR S AR K P B IR ER ™
B LR - BENES BEULRERAEE
EhENERES  AEBSELH DB
IREQRRR BB P IRIG STH -

HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—H1t ' X%£H
BREEBEERISREER  C¥HERLIE
£34.0% = AR % 4,150,509,000 7T, » =+
B AT A AR 490,587,0007T © RIEL
#RA9.3%  c EFEEBRERBREAETR
0.0987T °

— T HAERERERREER

PR TR RS K A DR A B A AR
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

Drawing support from favorable photovoltaic subsidizing policies,
the Group completed a number of power plant projects with a
yearly cumulative installed capacity of 195MW, including distributed
photovoltaic power plants in middle and eastern part, and large ground
power plants in northwestern part of China. During the same period,
the rooftop photovoltaic power installation at our production facility at
Xiangtan, Hunan Province had its power sold on-grid before the end of
this year. In the early 2014, the Group signed a strategic development
agreement with the government of Mingin County, Wuwei City, Gansu
Province, marking the formal inclusion of the 1.1GW ground power
plants in the Group’s business planning for the upcoming 3-5 years.

Apart from this, the Group has also made significant progress in
solar thermal business and has secured its foothold in the highly
competitive solar thermal market despite its late involvement in such
sector. Owning to the adjustment of strategic targets, the Group’s solar
thermal operation has undergone a transition of focus from technical
service to product sales, which were strengthened by activities such
as sales network development, partner identification, product quality
improvement and technical service capacity upgrading.

STEADILY ADVANCING GREEN BUILDINGS
BUSINESS

Based on its traditional business, namely curtain glass wall installation,
the Group has integrated increasing number of energy-saving and
environmental-friendly technologies (for example building integrated
photovoltaic and building integrated photo-thermal), allowing the green
buildings business to be increasingly profitable.

At the Group’s Zhuhai headquarters which is currently under
construction, the R&D Building, a part of US-China Clean Energy
Research Center’s joint research project on building efficiency, uses
an array of state-of-the-art energy efficiency technologies from both
home and abroad in an integrated manner in an attempt to develop
the operation and appraisal system for green buildings. The building
is designed in compliance with LEED NC platinum standard so as to
create an example of minimal energy consumption.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

AN INCREASING COMPETITIVENESS
ACHIEVED BY INNOVATIVE R&D EFFORTS

Innovative R&D efforts were made in line with the Group’s strategies,
achieving good results in green building, renewable energy and
new material product businesses of the Group. By means of lateral
cooperation and participation in formulation of standards and codes,
the Group’s voices were heard and popularity increased in related

areas.

In 2013, the Group was approved to construct the Singyes Technology
Research Center, a facility designed to promote solar energy’s building
applications in Guangdong Province. The center will embark on R&D,
talent development and technical result conversion and promotion
in relation with solar energy applications in building, and continue to
offer technical support to promote development of the industry and
growth of the Group. At the same time, thanks to its technical results in
green building sector, the Group has become a member of U.S. Green
Building Council.

HIGHLY EMPHASIZED PLANNING FOR THE
FUTURE

The Group will continue to highlight the renewable energy business
and push forward all businesses of the Group according to clearly
defined procedures, planning and objectives. Regarding distributed
photovoltaic business, the Group will make efforts to explore
executable, duplicable and promotable scale application models
which are specific to key cities, regions and sectors, thus will give
impetus to development of the distributed photovoltaic demonstration
area. Regarding large ground power plant development, the Group
will capitalise on the government-formulated incentive policies and
applicable platforms and integrate all resources so as to efficiently
carry out planning and development of such power plants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective accountability. This
report outlines the principles and the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors consider that, for the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the Code, except
for the deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the Code as described below.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with paragraph C.3
of the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. It
has also established a nomination committee and a remuneration committee
with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance practices
of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company from the Listing Date up to the date
of this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior management who
are delegated with the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Company. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including three executive
Directors, namely, Mr. LIU Hongwei, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. SUN Jilin and Mr. XIE Wen, two non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Li Huizhong and Mr. Cao Zhirong and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG Ching,
and Mr. CHENG Jinshu.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over half
of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made in the
best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
Further details of these committees are set out below on pages 15to 17.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc
meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board
meeting. Reasonable notices will also be given to the directors for ad-hoc
board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of

communications.
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The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the
Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors were
provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive
directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is maintained on the
website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 4 board meetings. The
attendance of individual Directors at the board meetings and annual general
meeting are set out below:

Board Meetings

Name of Directors

Annual General Meeting
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Attendance

HFESR
Board Meeting

EENE BREBEXRE EEEE;
Executive Directors BITEE

Mr. LIU Hongwei RATHE S 1/1 4/4
Mr. SUN Jinli BeBraE 0/1 4/4
Mr. XIE Wen #OXEE 0/1 4/4
Non-executive Directors EBRITESE

Mr. LI Huizhong FTEREE 0/1 4/4
Mr. CAO Zhirong BRESSEE 0/1 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BILFEHITES

Dr. WANG Ching * =iEL 1/1 4/4
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon GBI A 1/1 4/4
Mr. CHENG Jinshu e et 0/1 4/4
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SKILLS, KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND
ATTRIBUTES OF DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the period under review.
Every Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their understanding and
commit to high standards of corporate governance. The executive Director
brings his perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of the
Group’s business. The non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience, understanding
of local and global economies, and knowledge of capital markets to the
Group’s business. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable continuous professional development programmes for all Directors to
hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is required
to undertake an induction program to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of his duties and responsibilities. The induction program
includes an overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Board meetings’ procedures, matters reserved to the Board,
an introduction of the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and
duties, relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the Board
and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings with senior
officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the Revised CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had
participated in appropriate continuous professional development activities by
ways of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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The company secretary of the Company maintains records of training RRABZ AR MERTESLBIEII 2508 -
attended by the Directors. The training attended by each Director during the RER - FEFEEEINZBEREHNOT « —
Year is tabulated as follows:—

Training Records = 5I|E0 8%

Name Type of trainings Training matters

24 EalEER 1E3IZEIE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(FsE1) (FFEE2)

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. LIU Hongwei (Chairman) Bla s (/%) a,b i, i, iil, iv

Mr. SUN Jinli FegksE a,b i, i, il iv

Mr. XIE Wen B XEE a,b i, i, i, iv

Non-Executive Directors ERITESE

Mr. LI Huizhong FEBiE a,b i i, il iv

Mr. CAO Zhirong BEREE a,b i, i, dii, iv

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BIIFFHITES

Dr. WANG Ching T RiEL a, b i, i, iil, iv

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SIKEEL A a,b i i, i, v

Mr. CHENG Jinshu A it a,b i i, il iv

Note 1: MEEL -

a attending seminar or training session a HEF g SIS

b self-development and updates relating to general economy, business b HEERENBRAEERE XHERE =2

development, director’s duties and responsibilities, etc. B EMETS -

Note 2: fiaE2 -

[ corporate governance [ hEER

i regulatory compliance ii VAR ST

i finance iii W%

iv management and operation iv EEREE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Hongwei, the Chairman of the Group, is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, ensuring that all material issues are
decided by the Board in a conducive manner. Mr. Liu Hongwei is also
responsible for running the Group’s business and effective implementation
of the strategies of the Group. The Company is aware of the requirement
under paragraph A.2.1 of the Code that the roles of chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. Nevertheless, the Board considers that the combination of
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Group. The Board is of the view that this structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership, which can facilitate
the formulation and implementation of its strategies and decisions and enable
it to grasp business opportunities and react to changes efficiently. Moreover,
the Board considers that the sufficient measures have been taken and it will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management. As such, it is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group.
Therefore Mr. Liu Hongwei is performing the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess a wealth
of professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played a
significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and
their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they
bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategy, performance and
control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders of the Company are taken
into consideration, and the interests of the Company and its shareholders
are taken into account in all business decisions. The Company has received
the annual confirmation signed by each independent non-executive Director
to acknowledge their respective independence. After prudent enquiry, the
Board is of the view that each of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG Ching,
and Mr. CHENG Jinshu maintains the independence as required by Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

FREEITHER
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All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on an
annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities referred
to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new business
opportunity introduced to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
Throughout 2013, no claim had been made against the Directors and the
officers of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term of three years commencing
13 January 2012.

Mr. Cao Zhirong and Li Huizhong, the non-executive Directors of the
Company, had entered into service contracts with the Company for a specific
term of three years from 1 September 2012 and 1 July 2011, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term
of three years from 19 December 2011.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with Rules 3.21 to
3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting process and
internal control procedure of the Group, to review the financial information
of the Group and to consider issues relating to the external auditor. The
Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu,
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2013 and for the year ended 31 December
2013, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the

system of internal control.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit

Committee’s meetings:

RATIESF EMHRREI21 E3.231KK~FA
FECIKMRE  BEEER_ZZN\F+=
R+ThBEBBHRERRIERZEEE - B
ZEENTEBEAEEARENYBRER
BRANEEERE - EHAEENTBEER
INREEBERBINEZERINEE - BREEE]
HR=EB I FNTEF (A EREL - HkE
FERESBIEE)EN  EZZEGNER
REKEFLE - BREZEEREHAKEHRE
—=FAAZTHLEAEARBE=ZZ
—=ZFF+Z A=t ALFENGEEMBER
® o AEERBEHRIRER L —EANEEE

No. of Audit Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE BITEZREEE
BEE: EEARE -
YICK Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) KB (FE) 2/2
WANG Ching T = 2/2
CHENG Jinshu | 2/2
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its ERLZERERRACERBITEARE - 1%
duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be viewed on LZEG 7 AEEE 1] AR R A MR
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange. Fréduh 2808 -
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors.
The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely, Mr. Cheng
Jinshu, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. Wang Ching and Mr. Liu Hongwei. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Jinshu.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting to assess individual performance of the Directors and review
the remuneration packages and overall benefit of the Directors of the Group.

The following table shows the attendance and members of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2013:

FWNESE

AARESTTAFEBLGENRE  REEERN
R \F+ - ATARBBRRERR LI
MEEE - FHEZEENTERERMARA
EXENEREEABNFMBER - ARISIE
RZEH BRI ER S B RENIZRF K
ETMEERNHMEN  AEESIELES
BR - FMZE e mmAI KB - BIIR S5
FE - HAKBEE  EREERBIAHERE
FMZEehRe M RERETE -

EZT-=FTA=1+—HBILFE  Fl
RBERTREH  UFRESZEARR
RBEMAREESZHM R REEER -

==

W

w ||

TREJHEE-=FT-_A=T—HIF
EHHEE KB HFEERNBER -

No. of Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE BITHFMEEE
55 ERHRE -
CHENG Jinshu (Chairman) Bew(FE) 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon SoxEE 1/1
WANG Ching S 1/1
LIU Hongwei LUAT 4 1/1
The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform FNZESEREAREREITEEE - Zb

its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details
of which can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with
Recommended Best Practices of paragraph A.5 of the Code. The primary
duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board on a regular basis and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes. The Nomination Committee
consists of five members, namely Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Xie Wen, Mr. Wang
Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hongwei.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board, The Nomination Committee will evaluate
potential candidates by considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting. The following table shows the attendance and members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2013:

REEEE

RNRBETTREASENERESEEROR
T REBEEER-_ZTN\F+_A+NLEB
BORBRKIREEEE - REEZBENE
ZREDIETHRIESTSNERE - BERA
ﬁ'u&%ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ%m@ﬁ§$@kﬁ@
CIRBZEERANKEHER - BNRIAT#T
E CHIORAE  EREE - FKESLAERES
B - REZES R H T EREERE -

REEFEERERR S HMMHERER A
THER  UREFSRTMRBILRES °
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BE_T—=Ft+-A= +—E¢¢F'TE%
ZEERTIRGH - TREJBE—FT—=
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SRNIBER -

No. of Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE BITREEEE
BEE: BRERY :
LIU Hongwei (Chairman) Bl (FE) 11
XIE Wen #OX 1/1
WANG Ching F R 11
YICK Wing Fat, Simon K 1/1
CHENG Jinshu | 1/1

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details of which
can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

REZEGRRHARERBITERE - %
ZESZHABEFBHNE RN BESLE
A - BRAFHB AT AN 2 B4Rk Ko B 22 P AR b




China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board or
the Board committees including any dissenting views expressed by the
Directors, which should be available to all Directors for inspection. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document are required to be
sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility of the Company
Secretary to send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the Board or the
Board committees are also required to be sent to all Directors for record. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal
codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Finance Department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
the preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies,
disclosure requirements under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders of the Company, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the fee paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services amounted to approximately RMB5,998,000 and approximately
HK$80,000 respectively. There was no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditor.

Internal control

The Group appointed Shinewing Risk Services Limited to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2013. The Group is also in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal control
system.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, and,
in particular, considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and the training programmes and budget. The Board will conduct periodic
review on the progress of the improvement and endeavor to enhance the
internal control measures of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, which were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 65 to 66.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective communications with
shareholders and continues to act in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders. The Company keeps shareholders and investors informed of
its business performance and strategies by adopting a transparent and timely
disclosure policy which complies with the Listing Rules and provides all
shareholders equal access to such information. The Company also publishes
all documents on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides a
forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders directly.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer questions
during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and
related papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.

AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the light of
corporate governance best practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirements under Paragraph O of the Revised CG Code which is effective
from 1 April 2012.

(a)  Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered
office in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,
HM11, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108,
31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
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by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number
of the shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company, or not less
than one hundred of such shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting any
statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the
requisitionists must be deposited at the Company’s registered office
in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board on the secretary of
the Company, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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(c)  Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the enquiries.

INVESTOR RELATION

During the period under review, there had been no significant change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

GOING CONCERN

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

The Company has been introducing, and continues to introduce, measures to
comply with the former and revised Corporate Governance Code. Enhancing
corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with
the Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting
and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. During the period
under review, the Board considered the following corporate governance

matters:

(i) review of the compliance with the CG Code and the Revised CG Code;
and

(i) review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk management
systems of the Group through the Audit Committee.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current
practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
developments. Any views and suggestions from our shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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SOCIAL CARING

Since its inception, the Group has been committed to becoming a green
enterprise model leveraging its advantages and characteristics in the
development of renewable energy business, especially in the field of building
integrated photovoltaic/thermal system and intelligent microgrid. The Group
also hopes that the advantage of solar energy as a clean energy can be widely
propagated in the society. We have embraced our corporate philosophy of
“Giving back to the society” and actively participated in solar energy related
social responsibility projects, to promote low-carbon life and harmonious
concepts, when we develop our businesses.

Knowing of the outbreak of Ya’ an Earthquake, the Group immediately
mobilized its entire staff to make donations to the disaster-stricken region at
the first moment, in a bid to give a hand to the earthquake-stricken people
to recollect their confidence and rebuild their homes. As of 27 April 2013,
the staff of the Group has contributed an accumulative sum of RMB 42,000,
which was later transferred to the special account for disaster relief via the
One Foundation.

“A visit to Zhuhai, a look of the sea” — in July 2013, 42 students and 5
teachers from Lushan High School of Ya'an City paid a visit to the Company,
where they saw examples of solar energy applications and had a touch
with modern corporate culture. The Group gave to the students gifts such
as notebooks, mabile hard disk drives, etc. During the visit, 20 volunteers
from various functions of the Group cordially and amiably interacted with
the students by introducing the Group, answering job-related questions and
sharing their opinions about life.

“A visit to Zhuhai, a look of the sea” is a nationwide welfare project organized
by Zhuhai Women'’s Federation in collaboration with many women social
organizations and charitable companies. The visit to the Company is an
important part of the first “A visit to Zhuhai, a look of the sea” summer camp
for students from Ya'an. It is our heartfelt wish that all children of the affected
area of 4.20 Earthquake could step out of the nightmare-like disaster and
regain their hope for the future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL ASSESSMENT

The Company has developed its Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)
report that identifies and assesses environmental and social impacts and
issues, both adverse and beneficial, associated with the construction and
operation of its factory and the impacts were disclosed to the community
through public consultation. According to the approved EIA, there are no
sensitive acceptors and heritage sites within in the sites and potential impact
zone.

The effects of mitigation measures and facilities proposed in EIA report were
examined by local Environmental Protection Monitoring Station during the
year. The environmental acceptance report showed that the mitigations were
effective and pollutant emissions were within line with the requirements of
relevant regulations and standards. Pollutants discharge permit was issued to
the Company by local Environmental Protection Bureau.

LABOUR AND WORKING CONDITIONS

The Group is heavy emphasis on its employees’ development and for
the Group’s advancement. The Group organises different internal and
external training programmes every year with the objective of strengthening
the techniques, mentality, communication and management skills of its
employees.

The Group’s human resources policies in terms of recruitment, leave, medical
and personal accident, resignation, dismissal and termination. Every member
of staff has an employment contract in compliance with the requirements in
Mainland China or Hong Kong.
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STAFF INDUCTION

In 2013, the Group organized a variety of training programs in order to better
employees’ professional skills and comprehensive abilities. Currently 10
key employees are studying at Tsinghua University for MBA degree, and 10
electric professionals are studying at Hefei University of Technology on part-
time postgraduate course. The Group also executed cooperative agreement
with the University of Hull, U.K., which offers overseas education programs
for the Group’s staff members.

In April 2013, the Group organized a site technician skill training program
for its employees who are interested in work site management. During the
training program, lectures were given by both external lecturers and internal
experts to participating staff members, who later acquired their certificates
through testing. And the trained staff members were given opportunity
to move to new jobs - site technician — in accordance with the Group’s

requirement and their own wills.

In June 2013, the Group offered a training program entitled “Process Flow
Optimization and Strategic Target System” in which the first lecture — “Change
Management” — was given by Professor Julius N. Matteis, a renowned
foreign management mentor. The said training program also included
training courses for ISO management system, internal auditors and legal

professionals.

UNIVERSITY-INDUSTRY COLLABORATION

The Group stresses collaboration with universities in a view to provide
students with internship opportunities and experience in industries related to
solar energy application development while successfully organizing exchange
of achievements to back up theories of application technologies.
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Since February 2012, the Group started to develop an internship base in
collaboration with BNU-HKBU United International College (hereinafter
referred to as “UIC”). The Group provides students from UIC with internship
positions, and welcomes students from UIC to participate in “themed
programs” and vacation internship programs. Interactive exchanges
from both sides boost the horizontal collaboration on scientific research
projects through integrating the university-industry talent advantages with
technological advantages.

In September 2013, the Group attended the naming ceremony for the
internship base for university graduates of Xiangtan City. On the ceremony,
the Group and other renowned companies like Geely Auto and BBK were
named “
City”.

the earliest internship base for university graduates of Xiangtan

The internship bases on one hand help university graduates improve
their vocational skills, and on the other hand allow the Company to more
effectively develop and select talents, thus laying a solid foundation for further
cooperation with universities.

CULTURAL CONSTRUCTION

By implementing its cultural philosophy of “Developing a harmonious Singyes
with joint efforts”, the Group aggressively maintains an equal, open, and
harmonious working environment. In such environment, the enthusiastic
employees work with a studious and progressive attitude. The Group also
provides full support to its employee association in many aspects. Over years,
the Group has long established its unique corporate culture.

The “Fitness and Happiness” Club, which covers more than ten programs,
helps employees to work out and meditate. The number of such club
members totals over 400. The talented art troupe keeps demonstrating their
strong literary and artistic skills in the Group’s internal and external events.
Events, including annual sports game to welcome new members, the mid-
autumn evening, and the Chinese New Year Eve party, encourage the Group’s
employees to participate, and enrich their personal life.

In addition, the Group established a caring fund that helps its difficult
employees to overcome life difficulties.
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RESOURCES EFFICIENCY

Total consumptions of electricity in 2013 was 15,364,000kWh. Which implies
a total CO, emission of approximately 15,317 tones and SO, emission of 181
tones. As a responsible company, the Group is taking every measures to
reduce the negative impact to the environment. We have installed a 25.8MW
roof-top solar power generation system on the roof of our building and plant,
under full operation, it helps to save around 9,648 tones of coal usages,
which implies a reduction of 26,720 tones of CO,, 316 tones of SO, and 115
tones of nitrogen oxides emission.

Regarding energy conservation, the Group has actively implemented an
accountability system. The management staff has implemented sufficient
procedures to remind employees of the need for switching off lights and
power sources after work and adopting sensor faucets in some of the office
areas. The Company also employs dedicated support staff to patrol the
company regularly every night in order to make sure that all power sources
are switched off after work.

The Group also encourage electricity communication in order to save paper
usage. The Group has developed its own OA system for company internal

news announcement and staff communication.

ENERGY CONSERVATION AND EMISSION
REDUCTION

By December 2013, the Group constructed over 200 domestic and overseas
photovoltaic projects with an accumulative power output exceeding 500
MW and an annual electricity output of approximately 500,000,000 kwh.
These projects help save 141,362,000 liters of fuels or 195,732 tones of
standard coals. In other words, it means that the emission of CO,, SO,, and
nitrogen oxides will be cut by 542,069 tones, 6,416 tones and 2,338 tones,
respectively. Meanwhile, 147,886 tones of dust will be reduced during the
thermal power generation, thus saving about 2,174,800,000 liters of purified
water.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a professional renewable energy solution provider and building
contractor. Our main businesses are design, fabrication and installation
of conventional curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included
building integrated photovoltaic (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar system
and ground mounted solar system (collectively (“Solar EPC”); we also
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of renewable energy goods. Our
BIPV system involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic technology into the
architectural design of buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar
energy into electricity for use. Our system allows the electricity generated
from solar panels to be connected to the power grid of a building and the
electricity generated from sun power will be consumed simultaneously.
No extra electricity storage cost is required. In addition, we also engage in
the production and sale of renewable energy goods, including smart grid
system and solar thermal system. In 2011, we also started a new business
called Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO”) business or “New material” business for
the development of high-end curtain wall in future. Leveraging on our track
record and extensive experience in our curtain wall business, we will further
strengthen and develop our renewable energy business in respect of BIPV
systems and renewable energy goods. Apart from the above, we also provide
engineering design services and engage in the sale of curtain wall materials.
Our Group will endeavour to continue our focus on solar business. In the
long run, we will aspire and strive to grow into an enterprise with a focus on
renewable energy business.

FUTURE PLAN AND STRATEGIES
Curtain wall and green building business

Despite the unfavourable market environment in the construction industry
in China, the Group still recorded a 12.1% stable growth in curtain wall and
green building business. The Mainland China government implemented
various supporting program on green buildings. We therefore are strategically
shifting our focus in green building area to explore new business opportunity.

Solar EPC business

The Group has firstly entered into the Solar EPC market in China in 2007,
because of the strong support by the Golden Sun Program, our Solar EPC
business recorded a significant growth over the past few years. In 2013,
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the Mainland China Government also launched National-wide Feed-in-
Tariff Program (“FIT”) and Distributive Power Program (“DG”). In 2014,
the aggregate target from FIT and DG will not be less than 14GW, and the
aggregate installation capacity by the end of 2015 will not be less than 35GW.
The Mainland China will soon become the largest solar user in the World and
we are confident to maintain the leading position in Solar EPC area.

As announced by the Company on 17 January 2014, we had totally 320MW
of Solar EPC projects on hand, the total order pipeline in January 2014 has
already exceed our total Solar EPC delivery in 2013.

Development of renewable energy goods and new materials

Apart from Solar EPC, we also produce different kind of renewable energy
goods.

Renewable energy goods include solar photovoltaic materials and solar
thermal products. Solar thermal products include air-source heat pump, solar
heat collectors and solar heating system. Our long-term strategy is, through
our innovative research and development team, to diversify the application of
solar, and to widen the solar application in different area, like rural application
and irrigation.

Self-Develop solar projects

Apart from being Solar EPC, the Group also develop (to invest and to build)
its own solar projects. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
has completed approximately 195MW of self-developed projects, while
approximately 115MW projects are under the Golden Sun Program. The
Group could either sell them to outsiders or to hold for recurring electricity
income. By end of 31 December 2013, the Group sold approximately 15MW
of solar projects in Guangdong to a third party. The net gain on selling these
15MW projects was RMB19.6 million, considering related Golden Sun
Subsidy.
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Net gain in selling 15MW solar system

HE 15MW KIZEE R G RIUL 25 i F 38

RMB’000

AREFT

Cost of construction of the solar system e N L Y0 %N 92,608

Proceeds on selling the solar system HERIGERFRFTSRIE (64,103)

Loss recognised in other expense REAM R FERR Y g5 18 28,505
Release of deferred income in respect of MEBRGEE il

the roof top system recognised KR
in other income (48,130)
Net gain in selling the 15MW solar system  tH%& 15MW KF5 88 R4 F 5 (19,625)

Apart from that, the Group also have approximately RMB34 million of
Golden Sun subsidy not yet received, the receipt of this RMB34 million will
be subject to certain conditions. The maximum potential gain in selling this
15MW solar system would therefore be RMB53.6 million.

As announced by the Company on 29 August 2013, the Group signed an
framework agreement with United Photovoltaics Group Limited (formerly
known as Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited), a company listed in the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 686)
to sell 100MW of solar projects in Hunan. Since both parties could not reach
mutual consensus on certain conditions precedent, no definitive sale and
purchase agreement have been entered into and therefore this transaction
has been terminated. Details of which has been stated in the announcement
of the Company dated 28 March 2014.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue:

EX RO
L ON
THRIFMASE :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2013 2012
—E—-=5 —E——F
RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARBEET ARBBEETT

Conventional curtain walls EHERE
— Public work A 381.3 381.9
— Commercial and industrial -Im 900.5 748.7
— High-end residential - BiEE=E 88.9 92.2
1,370.7 1,222.8
Solar EPC KF58EEPC
— Public work - RHETE 85.6 320.0
— Commercial and industrial -1 1,803.3 752.0
1,888.9 1,072.0
Total Construction Contracts BRESRBE 3,259.6 2,294.8
Sale of goods BEmiHE
— Curtain wall materials - EifEmet 220.9 257.8
— Renewable energy goods - AT B ARERE MR 622.6 517.2
— New material business — FIMELERS 35.9 20.1
Total sale of goods ERHEAT 879.4 795.1
Sale of electricity BHEE 5.4 4.5
Rendering of design and other services R R E MRS 6.1 i
Total revenue AU 4,150.5 3,097.5
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Gross profit and gross profit margin EMRENZE
2013 2012
—T—=%f T
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEERT ARBEETT

Construction contracts EEAR
— Conventional curtain walls - ERES 220.2 16.1 187.7 15.4
— Solar EPC - K58 EPC 556.7 29.5 380.6 3b5.5
776.9 23.8 568.3 24.7

Sale of goods ERHE
— Curtain wall materials - BEME 44.6 20.2 449 17.4
— Renewable energy goods - A BERREM 154.6 24.8 133.8 25.9
— New materials N K 9.5 26.5 1.1 55
208.7 23.7 179.8 22.6
Sale of electricity BEHHEE 0.2 3.7 - -
Rendering of design and other services IR R EMARTS 2.6 42.6 1.1 355

Overall gross profit margin BMER= 988.4 23.8 749.2 24.2
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Solar EPC business

The Group’s revenue increased by RMB1,053 million or 34.0%, from
RMB3,097.5 million in 2012 to RMB4,150.5 million in 2013. Gross profit of
the Group increased by RMB239.2 million or 31.9%, from RMB749.2 million
in 2012 to RMB988.4 million in 2013.

The Group’s conventional curtain wall business record a stable growth
of RMB147.9 million or 12.1%, from RMB1,222.8 million in 2012 to
RMB1,370.7 million in 2013, especially in commercial sector. Apart
from FIT and DG, the Mainland China government also grant subsidy to
building which is classified as “Green Building”. Such policy stimulate
the demand for our high-end curtain wall business, that’s the main
reason for the increase in business volume and also the improvement

in gross profit margin in the curtain wall sector.

Gross profit from conventional curtain walls increased from RMB187.7
million to RMB220.2 million. Gross profit margin improved slightly to
16.1% in 2013 (2012: 15.4%).

Our Solar EPC business achieved an outstanding results. Revenue from
Solar EPC increased from RMB1,072 million in 2012 to RMB1,888.9
in 2013, representing an increase of 76.2%. Gross profit margin
maintain at a relatively high level of 29.5%.

Commercial and industrial contributed 95.5% of the total revenue in
Solar EPC business. The Mainland China government, from previous
Golden Sun Program to the new DG program, continue to encourage
industrial and commercial users to apply solar system on their roof
top or to integrate into their building structure. These entities are
encouraged to use the electricity from their own solar system and they
also have the option to sell the power back to the grid if there are any
excessive electricity generated from solar. This program stimulate the
demand from commercial and industrial users and hence our Solar
EPC revenue from this sector increased significantly.

KBSHE EPC 275
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AT

Looking forward to 2014 onwards, the Mainland China government still
encourages the application of DG system the relatively well-developed
areas in China and we expect our Solar EPC business could continue

to maintain a healthy growth.

In second half of 2013, solar farm investors were rushing to meet the
deadline in order to get a high feed-in-tariff price, we therefore also
completed some ground-mounted Solar EPC projects in North-West
part of China. In January 2014, we have signed an Memorandum
of Understanding (“MOU") with Gansu government to develop
approximately 1.1GW of solar system in Wuwei City over the next 5
years. Our role is to act as Solar EPC and our main duties are to source
and to liaise with suitable investors, as well as to help investors to get
relevant permits. The Gansu Government targets to develop not less
than 330MW in 2014 and potential new orders could be brought to the

Group.

As announced by the Company in January 2014, we had approximately

320MW of solar EPC projects on hand.

Sale of goods comprises sale of conventional materials; sale of

renewable energy goods and sale of New materials.

Sale of conventional materials dropped by RMB36.9 million or 14.3%.
Gross profit margin in 2013 was 20.2% (2012: 17.4%). The Group
is changing its focus to the more profitable solar business and hence

conventional materials dropped in 2013.

Sale of renewable energy goods increased by RMB105.4 million
or 20.4%. Sale of renewable energy goods comprises sale of Solar
photovoltaic materials, sale of solar thermal collectors and heat pump
and other solar related products. Gross margin dropped slightly to

24.8% (2012: 25.9%).
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4) New material represented a electricity-conductive material called 4)

Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO”) and it will become transparent when

electricity is connected. Our New material business included ITO film

and ITO embedded glass, while the transparency of ITO embedded

glass is adjustable by switching the power. Revenue from new material

increased by RMB15.8 million and gross margin increased to 26.5%

(2012: 5.5%) because of technology improvement.

5) Our first smart-grid demonstration project in Dong-Ao Island 5)

commenced operation in 2010. Sale of electricity income during the

year was RMB5.4 million.

ks —BE AIRBA L (N1TO))
WEEME - HRERAGERAN - &
MR ERBEITOERE RITORAR
W - M ITO R AT IR 3 A i BR J2 AT A8
BEIRFARAL o RN BIlTE - MR
FoU ASE 0 A R B 15,800,000 7T EF
EIREE265%(ZE——4F :55%) °

RIZ-TF RESHEBEEET
SBHBFBRANESE - FRENHER
A B AERHE 5,400,000 7T ©

Revenue and profit contribution from different business sectors: KB AR EFEESU N R it F]
Revenue split WA 775
2013 2012
—T—-=f —E—=F
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEERT ARBEHETT
Conventional business EE e 1,597.7 38.5 1,483.7 479
Renewable energy business Al BARLRER 2,516.9 60.6 1,593.7 51.5
New material business IR RS 35.9 0.9 20.1 0.6

100 100
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Profit split SR
2013 2012
—E—=%f TE— 4
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEERT AREEET

Conventional business [EESES 267.4 27.1 233.7 31.2
Renewable energy business A BERRER 711.5 72.0 514.4 68.6
New material business RIS 9.5 0.9 1.1 0.2
100 100

Other income and gains H At e \ B Wt 2%

Other income and gains mainly represented recognition of deferred income,
receipt of government subsidy and interest income from banks. The increase
was mainly because RMB48.1 million of deferred income was recognised in
respect of the selling of 15MW solar system in Guangdong.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB14.3 million or 23.3%.
The increase in selling and distribution expense was mainly caused by the
increase in staff costs, and other business related expenses. The increase
in staff costs was because of the increase in salary and bonus. The levels of
changes in other items were consistent with our business growth.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by RMB22.1 million or 11.2%. The
increase in administrative expenses was again mainly driven by the increase
in staff costs, depreciation, research expense and other business related
expenses.
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Other expenses

Other expenses increased by RMB30.7 million comparing with 2012. The
increase was mainly because of the RMB28.5 million loss on selling of 15MW
solar system in Guangdong.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB22.1 million. Total bank and
other loans amounted to RMB1,550.9 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
1,206.4 million). The increase in loans raised and the use of discounted bills
inside Mainland China drove up the interest expense.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense included RMB110.8 million of taxation charge and
RMB25.1 million of deferred tax charge.

Provision for corporate tax increased from RMB73.5 million in 2012 to
RMB110.8 million in 2013. The increase is in line with the growth in pre-tax
profits.

Deferred tax included RMB28.4 million (2012: RMB20.7 million) of deferred
tax charges, it represented provision for dividend withholding tax based on
5% of net profit on our operating subsidiaries located inside Mainland China.
It also included RMB3.2 million (2012: RMB1.1 million) in respect of the fair
value adjustment on retention money receivables and government grants.

Strong current ratio

The current ratio being current assets over current liabilities, was 1.46 as at
31 December 2013 (2012: 1.45).
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Trade and bills receivables/trade and bills payables turnover
days

FEW S SR IA R KRR A E SR
IHRREMAEREAEH

At 31 December At 31 December

2013 2012

R-B—=% MR-T—_F

+=A=+—H +-A=+—8

Days Days

Turnover days AR B S|
Trade receivables JEWE 5718 134 134
Trade payables JETE S500E 103 63

Trade and bills receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average
of the beginning and ending balance of trade and bills receivables, net
of impairment, for the year divided by the revenue during the year and
multiplied by the number of days during the year. Trade and bills receivables
turnover days at 31 December 2013 was 134 days. Trade and bills payables
turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and ending
balance of trade and bills payables for the year divided by the cost of sales
during the year. Trade and bills payables turnover days at 31 December 2013
was 103 days, an improvement is noted when comparing with 2012.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s primary source of funding included the cashflow generated from
operating activities and newly raised bank loans. At 31 December 2013, the
Group had approximately RMB894.8 million of cash and cash equivalents
and approximately RMB1,550.9 million of bank loans. The Group will
continuously manage its cash outflow closely and cautiously in the coming
years and dedicate to maintain a sound financial position and improve the
equity return to its shareholders.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy level in
order to support the growth of our business. Gearing ratio, represented
by consolidated net borrowings (total bank loans minus cash and cash
equivalents) to total equity at 31 December 2013 was 25.2% (2012: 27.5%).
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With the continuous positive cash inflow generated from its operations
and its existing cash resources and available banking facilities obtained
from its bankers, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its
commitments and working capital requirements.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to approximately RMB1,292.3 million and it was mainly used in
the construction of self-developed solar projects. Capital expenditures in
2012 was RMB335.9 million and was mainly for a production base in Zhuhai.

Borrowings and bank facilities

The outstanding borrowings comprised bank and other loans of RMB1,550.9
million with effective interest rates ranging from Hong Kong Inter Bank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 0.95% to HIBOR + 4% for property mortgage
loan and revolving loans in Hong Kong, and London Inter Bank offered Rate
(“LIBOR") + 7.83% for an syndication loan in Hong Kong, and LIBOR + 2.5%
for a short term loan in Hong Kong. Interest rates for domestic loans inside
Mainland China were ranging from 5.04%-8.20%.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total banking facilities of
RMB3,702.3 million. We utilised RMB1,584.5 million as bank loans and
RMB688.2 million were utilised as trade financing activities (including letter
of credits, bills, performance bond etc). The remaining banking facilities
RMB1,429.6 million were limit for arranging trade financing.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currency. The Group is also exposed to foreign currency risk from
its offshore loans raised in Hong Kong.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$ and US$ exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). There is no
impact on the Group’s equity.

TREMHPE TR ETTERN T EE - &
HBHRSIEOBERT - HAEEREE
HROGRAEN (EREBEERBENR
REBEZE) NEREDN - AEBE#DIL &

=2 3| B2 488
ZEIFE o

Increase/(decrease)
Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax
in foreign currency rate N
Ex=tA (Ti) iR, GRL)
% RMB’000
AREFIT

2013 —T—=F
If RMB weakens against HK$ AR BT E 5% 418
If RMB strengthens against HK$ i AR BB TTHE (5%) (418)
If RMB weakens against US$ i AR T A 5% (3,274)
If RMB strengthens against US$ WAREHETAE (5%) 3,274

Credit risk EEREE

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
and other receivables, and other financial assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Substantially
all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Mainland China, which management believes are of
high credit quality.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant. As at the end of the report period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk because 22.6% and 41.4% (2012: 11.3%
and 27.2%) of the Group’s trade and bills receivables were due from the
Group’s largest customer and five largest customers, respectively. All of
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WoE kBt & R ERRE ERRASE
AXESHEEFRNTKSERERR - AEE
BAHDREMREFEYREEERSEE
BEEERNTEAEALSRBEERS

AEEERRAREEENE=ZTALRS -
REBENBREEMBRIRERERZZNHER
AICBIERBRERR o W - RUGREHRE
FEETEE  AEBMARNZERRRIL
TEX - RBEHR - AREFEETEESR
hERE  TEARAEEREAEEZKE
FPREEXREFPHEWE ZFERERRED
AE22.6% K% 414% (ZE—ZF 1 113% &



ZR-SFFR PRERAXKHERMIERER AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

these customers have good credit quality by taking into account of their
credit history, a long-term business relationship has been established by
both parties. The Group has delegated a team which is responsible for
determination of credit limits and monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up actions will be implemented to recover overdue debt.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the settlement
from customers and the payment to vendors.

Dividend

The Directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of HK$0.09 per
share (2012: HK$0.07 per share). The Company is in rapid expansion stage,
the actual dividend payout ratio in each year will depend on the actual
performance of the Group, the general industry and economic environment.

Closure of register of members

The register of members will be closed from Friday, 23 May 2014 to
Wednesday, 28 May 2014, both days inclusive. In order to entitle to the
attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all
share transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Investor Services Limited at 26/F Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (which will be relocated to Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong with effective from
31 March 2014) not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 22 May 2014.
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The Company'’s register of members will be closed from Wednesday, 4 June
2014 to Thursday, 5 June 2014 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrars and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (which will be
relocated to Level 22 Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
with effective from 31 March 2014), for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 3 June 2014.

Cheques for final dividend (subject to approval in the annual general meeting
mentioned above) will be dispatched to the shareholders of the Company on
or before Friday, 11 July 2014.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had about 2,350 employees. Employee
salary and other benefit expenses increased to approximately RMB162.4
million in 2013 from approximately RMB119.7 million in 2012, which
represented an increase of 35.7%. This is because the Group additionally
recruited more than 200 staffs during the years to meet with the rapid
business growth and the increase in bonus and remuneration of existing
staff. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employees, which will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart
from provident fund scheme (according to the provisions of Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes for Hong Kong employees) or the state-managed
retirement pension scheme (for Mainland China employees) and medical
insurance, discretionary bonus are also awarded to employees according to
the assessment of individual performance.
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The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

TRUSIEHEENER -

Name Age Position 21 Fih 52

Liu Hongwei 50 Chairman and executive Director 244 50 FRERPTES
Sun Jinli 50 Deputy Chairman, and executive Director FeE  508% BIERERHITES
Xie Wen 48 Executive Director W X 48ER HITER

Li Huizhong 64 Non-executive Director Tgh 645 IEMITESR

Cao Zhirong 40 Non-executive Director BEL 40 HHITES

Wang Ching 59 Independent non-executive Director F R 59K BUIERITES
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 56 Independent non-executive Director K&  B6BR BUIEHITES
Cheng Jinshu 61 Independent non-executive Director 2ol 6lm BEITES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Liu Hongwei aged 50, is the Chairman and an executive Director of our
Company.

He joined our Group since August 1995. He is responsible for the formulation
and execution of our Group’s overall business strategies and policies as well
as the overall management of our Group. Mr. Liu has more than 12 years’
experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial University, now
known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in inorganic materials
engineering, Mr. Liu worked at a state-owned glass manufacturing enterprise,
Shaanxi Glass Factory, as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1991, Mr.
Liu was the director of production department at another glass manufacturing
enterprise, Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei was
the manager of the operation department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass.
In 1995, Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass jointly established Zhuhai Singyes
Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes”, formerly known as
Zhuhai Singyes Curtain Wall Engineering Co., Ltd) with Zhuhai City Township
Enterprise. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has been an executive Director
of our Company. From August 1995 to October 2007, Mr. Liu was appointed
as Zhuhai Singyes’s general manager, taking charge of general supervising
and controlling on technologies. In December 2000, Mr. Liu was certified as
a Level 1 Project Manager by the Guangdong Province Construction Bureau.
In January 2001, Mr. Liu was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of
construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau.
In 2003, Mr. Liu became an adjunct professor of Wuhan University of

PITES
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Technology. In August 2004, Mr. Liu was appointed as one of the experts to
the Standardisation Technical Committee of the PRC Ministry of Construction
for Curtain Walls, Doors and Windows. Mr. Liu is currently a member of the
Standing Committee of the Zhuhai Municipal People’s Congress of the PRC
Mr. Liu is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Sun Jinli aged 50, is our Deputy Chairman and an executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for formulating the
overall sales and marketing strategies of our Group. Mr. Sun has more than
nine years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than
16 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining
a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
inorganic materials engineering, Mr. Sun worked at Beijing Electronics
Factory as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1995, Mr. Sun was the
manager of the production department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass. From
August 1995 to January 2001, Mr. Sun was a project manager of Zhuhai
Singyes, responsible for the development and management of business
projects. From January 2001 to October 2007, Mr. Sun was the deputy
general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, responsible for planning the overall sales
and marketing strategy of Zhuhai Singyes and our Group. Since March 2005,
Mr. Sun has been an executive Director of our Company. Since 2007, Mr. Sun
has also been working as the general manager of Singyes Renewable Energy.
In December 1994, Mr. Sun was certified as an engineer by the Guangdong
Province Zhuhai Designation Reform Committee In March 2002, Mr. Sun was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction. In
December 2007, Mr. Sun was registered as a constructor by the Ministry of
Construction. Mr. Sun is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is
the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Xie Wen aged 48, is our executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for supervision at
our work-sites and research and development of BIPV technologies. Mr.
Xie has more than 16 years’ experience in curtain wall engineering sector.
Mr. Xie graduated from Zhengzhou Textile Engineering College majoring in
mechanical engineering (textile machinery) in 1987. From 1987 to 1994,
Mr. Xie worked at the Equipment Energy Team in Hunan Shaoyang No. 2
Textile Machinery Factory. Mr. Xie joined Zhuhai Singyes in August 1995
as a project manager, responsible for the development and management
of business projects of Zhuhai Singyes. From January 2003 to September
2007, Mr. Xie was the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, in charge
of technical guidance and supervision at various worksites. In October 2007,
Mr. Xie became the general manager of Zhuhai Singyes. In December 2002,
Mr. Xie was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of
Construction. In June 2004, Mr. Xie was certified as a senior engineer in
respect of machinery by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. In
February 2008, Mr. Xie was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry
of Construction. Mr. Xie is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Li Huizhong, aged 64, was appointed as non-executive director of our
Company on 1 July 2011. Prior to this appointment, he was a vice general
manager of Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai
Singyes”), a subsidiary of the Company and retired from his position
in Zhuhai Singyes in year 2010. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Heilongjiang Radio and Television University in July 1986.
Prior to joining the Group in year 2000, Mr. Li was the general manager of the
Zhuhai office of Daging Petroleum Administrative Bureau.

Cao Zhirong aged 40, is our non-executive Director. He joined our group
in September 2009. Currently Mr. Cao is Director of BNP Paribas Equities
(Asia) Limited Shanghai Representative Office. Previously he worked at ICEA
Capital Limited and Wing Lung Finance Limited and has approximately 15
years of experience in investment bank. Mr. Cao obtained a master degree in
business administration from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has near 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and asset
management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. He
was the president of Investment and Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun
Financial Holding Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the managing director of JS Cresvale
Securities International Limited, the managing director of SinoPac Securities
Asia Ltd. in Hong Kong, SEVP of SinoPac Securities Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the
director of Investment Banking Department at Standard Chartered Bank
Hong Kong and the associate director of Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., New York
and Hong Kong. Dr. Wang currently is the managing director of Shanghai
International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd., a licensed corporation
registered with Honk Kong Securities and Futures Commission. He is also
the executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited, an investment fund company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 770). Dr. Wang obtained his master degree in
business administration from the University of Houston and Ph.D. in finance
from Columbia University in the city of New York.

Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 56, is our independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Yick holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring
in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in
England. Mr. Yick has over 30 years of experience in audit, direct investment,
investment banking and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Yick also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (both
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited).
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Cheng Jinshu, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of our Company in December 2008. Mr. Cheng is the professor
director of Science and Technology Division and director of the Green
Construction Material & Manufacture Project Research Institute of Ministry
of Education of Wuhan University of Technology. He was the vice-dean
of Material Project Department, vice-dean of Material College and vice-
director of Silicate Material Project, key laboratory of the Ministry of
Education of Wuhan University of Technology. Mr. Cheng graduated from
the Hubei Construction Industry College, now known as Wuhan University
of Technology, majoring in glass fiber in September 1976. Mr. Cheng has 34
years’ education and academic research experience relating to construction
materials.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Xiong Shi, aged 50, is the Chief Engineer of our Group. He is responsible
for the research and development of technology. He has more than 12
years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more then 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Xiong joined our Group
as a project manager in August 1995. From November 2001, Mr. Xiong
assumed the position of Chief Engineer of Zhuhai Singyes until August 2007.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xiong was the manager of the quality testing
department at Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass from 1988 to 1995. Mr. Xiong
also worked as a technical officer at a state-owned glass manufacturing
enterprise, Xiangfan City Glass Factory, from 1986 to 1988. Mr. Xiong was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in December 2000. Mr. Xiong was certified as a senior engineer in respect
of construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in
December 2001. Mr. Xiong obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Wuhan Industrial University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology,
majoring in inorganic materials engineering in July 1986. In December
2007, Mr. Xiong was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry of
Construction.
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Zhuo Jianming, aged 53, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
He has approximately 14 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering
sector. He joined our Group as project manager in February 2000. From
January 2001, Mr. Zhuo assumed the position of deputy general manager
of production of Zhuhai Singyes. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhuo was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in March 2002. Mr. Zhuo obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering and
construction from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1983.

Zhao Feng, aged 48, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes since
August 2007. He is also a director of Zhuhai Singyes. He joined our Group
as a sales and marketing manager in December 2002. He has approximately
12 years of experience in the construction sector and approximately 11
years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhao worked as an engineer of Hubei Province Shashi
Construction Materials Scientific Research Institute from 1987 to 1995. Mr.
Zhao was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of construction materials
by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in December 2004. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
materials science in July 1987. Mr. Zhao became the general manager of
Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Co., Ltd, and responsible for managing its
daily operation.

Wang Zhijun, aged 38, is the chief financial officer of our Company since
May 2008. He has 15 years of experience in financial accounting. He joined
Zhuhai Singyes as a financial accountant in September 1998 immediately
after he graduated from Qingdao University. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Wang
acted as the chief accountant of the accounting department of Zhuhai
Singyes and became the financial manager of Zhuhai Singyes in June 2006.
Mr. Wang qualified as a registered assistant accountant in the PRC in August
1999.
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Zhang Chao, aged 41, is the operating general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
Mr. Zhang joined our Group in December 2002 as the manager of the
business department of Zhuhai Singyes. He has approximately 12 years of
experience in the construction sector and approximately 11 years’ experience
in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Zhang graduated from Qigihaer
Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in industry and civil
construction in July 1995. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked as a
construction budgeteer at Heilongjiang Province Hei He City Railway (Group)
Company from 1995 to 2002. In January 2006, Mr. Zhang was certified as
a constructor by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. Mr. Zhang
was also certified as a National Construction Appraiser by the Construction
Department in 2003 and construction engineer by Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in 2005. In December 2007, Mr. Zhong was registered as a constructor by
the PRC Ministry of Construction.

Luo Duo, aged 35, is the chief engineer of Zhuhai Singyes. She joined
our Group as a designer in July 2001. She has approximately 12 years of
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Ms. Luo worked as the
vice-director of design institute of Zhuhai Singyes from November 2004 to
December 2006 and the director of design institute from January 2007 to
January 2008. In February 2008 she was appointed as the chief engineer
of Zhuhai Singyes. Ms. Luo was certified as a Class 2 Registered Structural
Engineer by the PRC Ministry of Construction in January 2005. Ms. Luo
was certified as a Plan-Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in February 2008. Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree in Construction
Engineering from Qingdao Construction Engineery College in July 2001.
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Liang Bingqgiang, aged 36, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes
and responsible for the development of the overseas market. He has more
than 13 years of experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. He joined
our Group as a designer in April 2002. Mr. Liang worked as the director
of design department of Zhuhai Singyes Beijing representative office from
July 2004 to July 2006 and he worked for Zhongshan Shengxing Curtain
Wall Company Ltd from August 2000 to March 2002. In August 2006, he
was appointed as the manager of the photo-electricity business department
of Zhuhai Singyes. In April 2008, he was appointed as the deputy general
manager of Singyes Renewable Energy. Mr. Liang was certified as an
Assistant Engineer by the Zhongshan Personnel Bureau in October 2001.
Mr. Liang was certified as a Construction Design Engineer by the Zhuhai
Personnel Bureau in January 2006. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in construction engineering from Tianjin Institute of Urban Construction in
July 2000.

YU Chon Man, aged 36, was appointed as the financial controller, qualified
accountant and company secretary of our Company in June 2008. He
is responsible for financial reporting and general investor affairs of our
Company. He has approximately 15 years of experience in financial
accounting. Mr. Yu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Prior to joining us, he had approximately seven years of working
experience with international audit firms and was mainly responsible for
financial auditing, internal control reporting and compliance advisory. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s
degree (Hons) in accountancy in 2001.

COMPANY SECRETARY

YU Chon Man, is our company secretary. For further details regarding Mr.
Yu, please see the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.
The Company has established a principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and was registered with the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea company under Part
Xl of the Companies Ordinance on 29 August 2008. Mr. Yu Chon Man has
been appointed as the authorised representative of the Company for the
acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf of the Company in
Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of the
Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution comprising
a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional renewable energy system integrator and building contractor, it is
principally engaged in the design, fabrication and installation of conventional
curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included building integrated
photovoltaic (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar system and ground mounted
solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”). The BIPV system involves (i) the
integration of photovoltaic technology into the architectural design of buildings
and structures and (ii) conversion of solar energy into electricity for use. In
addition, the Group also engages in the production and sale of renewable
energy goods, including smart grid system, and solar thermal system. The
Group’s principal operating market is in Mainland China.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to
the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various public
or commercial BIPV or curtain wall or solar form investors. In aggregate, the
largest and top five customers contributed approximately 15.9% and 30.8%
of the Group’s total revenue in 2013 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing PV penal, aluminium and
glass from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2013, the top five suppliers include
material suppliers and sub-contractors, sub-contracting fees paid or material
purchase to its largest and five largest suppliers were about 27.7% and
52.4% of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2013 respectively.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries which principally affect the results
as at 31 December 2013 are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
Company’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 67 to 180. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of
HK$ 0.09 per share (2012: HK$0.07 per share).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 71 of the annual report and in note 32 to the financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Final dividend amounting to RMB48,954,000 was declared by reduction
in distributable reserve. As at 31 December 2013, the Company's reserves
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
applicable law of Bermuda, amounting to RMB10,194,000. An resolution will
be proposed in the forthcoming annual general meeting for the reduction of
share premium of RMB50,000,000 to the distribution reserve for distribution
of final dividends.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and equipment
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements. During the year, the Company
and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of
the Company. The Company also issued 13,162,999 shares at the exercising
price of HK$3.58 per share and 5,800,000 shares at the exercising price of
HK$2.78 per share on exercise of share options. And 40,000,000 shares
were issued pursuant to a sale and subscription agreement made between
the Company, Strong Eagle Holdings Limited and BOCI Asia Limited in
November 2013.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last 5 financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Hongwei
Mr. SUN Jinli

Mr. XIE Wen

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Huizhong
Mr. Cao Zhirong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. WANG Ching

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon

Mr. CHENG Jinshu

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Xie Wen,
Mr. Li Huizhong and Mr. Cheng Jinshu are required to retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of the above Directors will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management members
of the Group was based on their individual performance as well as market
trends and practices. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2013 were within the following bands:

REE-_Z—=F+_A=+—BIFE X
NefERE(BEES) ZHFHNTRAT
gE

Number of
Senior Management

Bands EiE EREEESE
RMB300,001 to RMB600,000 AR# 300,001 7t E AR 600,000 7T

RMB600,001 to RMB900,000 AR# 600,001 7TTE A RE 900,000 7T 2
Total: X1 10

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of 3 years, which is renewable automatically for
successive terms of 3 years each commencing from the day immediately
after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment unless terminated
by not less than 3 months’ notice in writing served by either party. Each of
the non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years, which
is renewable automatically for successive terms of 1 year each commencing
from the day next after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment
unless terminated by not less than 2 months’ notice in writing served by either
party. Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for
a term of three years which is terminable by either party by giving the other
party not less than 2 months’ prior notice in writing. None of the Directors
has a service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies of other
companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of
Directors (the “Board”) may at its discretion, offer eligible persons (being any
Director or employee (whether full-time or part-time), consultant or advisors
of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Persons”) who the Board may in its
absolute discretion select to subscribe for such number of Shares as the
Board may determine at a subscription price determined in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the Board may
approve from time to time.

Total number of Shares available under the Share Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 16,742,000 shares,
representing 2.4% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the date of
this report. The Company granted 30,816,000 options with exercise price of
HK$3.58 per share on 23 July 2009, 7,200,000 options with exercise price
of HK$2.78 per share on 27 May 2010 and 7,200,000 options with exercise
price of HK$2.68 on 11 October 2011, respectively. Options quantity and
exercise prices were adjusted pursuant to an announcement of the Company
dated 27 July 2012. Please refer to note 31 of the financial statement, for the
year ended 31 December 2013 for details of the options granted.
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Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1.0% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons and his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and
terms (including the subscription price) of such options being fixed before
such general meeting and other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.

Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such minimum
period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on which the
offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole or in part by the
grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry by giving notice
in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be exercised and the
number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised provided that the number
of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board lot for dealing in Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. Such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
the Shares in respect of which the notice is given. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from
the date of grant. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme by Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.
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Price of Shares

The subscription price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of
the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine, save that such
price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer to grant
option (provided that the new issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares
where our Company has been listed for less than five business days as at
the date of offer to grant option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A
consideration of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant
of an option.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event
no further option will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

During the year, 13,162,999 shares were issued at HK$3.58 each on
exercise of share options granted on 23 July 2009 and 5,800,000 shares
were issued at HK$2.78 each on exercise of share options granted on 27
May 2010. Save as disclosed above, there was no exercise of any conversion
or subscription rights under any convertible securities, options, warrants
or similar rights issued or granted at any time by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2013.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed
securities of the Company during the year.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2013, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Company/name
of associated

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

corporation Number of Approximate %
Name AT HEE Capacity Type of interest shares of shareholding
i EEETE St R BRHEE RRAERLAE L
Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 244,981,078 35.41%
2UATHESTHE ViN/NE] corporation ! A
SN
Company Beneficial interest ? Long 1,380,000 0.20%
AT fay ok &E
Sub-total: Long 246,361,078 35.61%
2 K&
Mr. Sun Jinli Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,380,000 0.20%
Relit ZAN/NG| B 2 RE
Mr. Xie Wen Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,380,000 0.20%
# kA& RAT] Bt ? rA
Mr. Li Huizhong Company Beneficial interest 2 Long Nil Nil
FEHEE AT B 2 RE i i
Mr. Wang Ching Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 240,000 0.03%
T REE RAT] Bt ? rA
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, ~ Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 240,000 0.03%
Simon iN/NE] B 2 kA
GBS
Mr. Cheng Jinshu Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 240,000 0.03%
i RAT] Bt 2 ®A
Notes: IE

L These 244,981,078 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose share 1.
capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be

#%244,981,078 % %17 A Strong Eagle Holdings
Ltd. 55 & - if1 24T # 5t 4 % B Strong Eagle
Holdings Ltd. & A 2 53% @ RIKZEH R PE
Bl Bl ERRARZERD P HEE
R o

interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO.

ZE B BRI A AR ERBAE -

V2 Such interests represent the options of the Company held by the relevant 2
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, so far as the Directors are aware, save as disclosed
above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief executive
of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each
of such persons’ interest in such securities, together with any options in
respect of such capital, were as follows:

Capacity/nature

FEIRERRSG - HEARKBRE
FPHERRER
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KB RRZBRERERAE ERE BRI AR
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K2 (EfeIfERcREmn T

Approximate %

Long/short of interest Number of shareholding

Shareholder position S/ of shares BRHERE Y

B&E R ER HEmE I8 E Bkl

Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. ! Long position Beneficial owner 244,981,078 35.41%
®AE EmfEBA

1. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr. Xie 1. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. % Bl B3 2 4T 4 5t

Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi, Mr. Zhuo Jianming and Mr. Li Huizhong, as to 53%, 15%,
11%, 8%, 9% and 4% respectively.

NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual
or potential conflict in interest.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2013.

No contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2013.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No transactions as set out in the “Related party transactions” in note 37 to
the financial statements are subject to the reporting, announcement and/or
independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Byelaws,
or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Upon
the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2013.

EXEH

RAE -~ EER AR S AR RN B AR
MEARGES2EITERARFRIBE_T
—=Ft+ZA=1+—RUEFEFREFAEED
REMNEREL -

RERIBE T —=F+—A=1+—HILF
FEREMSE BT LEFTRHEEREF
(TmBEESERE) EEERERNEMNE
REH

RERFEE_T—=F+_A=+—HILHF
e BER - AR AN B PR AR AR SR ok EL A fa] BT
BB EARD B Sk E M E A BRE RS
BEEHNMABR -

FEX S

MEHMRMTEI7BEN RS A2 X P
BEFEZRBETRAUBUAEZRE  2E
Ko/ S IBL R AL 2 R

BrBEEE

A mARA S A FE (AR B]EE A SZ Y 7]
R ) AP ERRELRERNE -

EFETEAX HHMEETA

ARRB AL TR RIS+ Fraiay LM ETT
AERETELZINRETR - (FEREES
EITRFRZHRETTR o EARFHULEH
ARERR  *REFHRREINEE_FT
—=F T A=+ -HIEFEEETIEEST
A



ZR-SFFR PRERAXKHERMIERER AR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008 with
terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance with the
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the audit
committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman
of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication between other directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time. The audit committee is to assist the
Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as may be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group. For further details of the audit committee and other committees
of the Board, please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” from pages 8 to 22.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited by
Ernst & Young which will retire, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
LIU Hongwei

Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B A2 E RS

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

EY =x

To the shareholders of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Singyes
Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 180, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B AZHEN RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2014
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ZR-SFFR PRERAXKHERMIERER AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ma

SN HMmEENER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=T—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—-=%F —ET-CF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETT ARETTT
REVENUE 9N 4 4,150,509 3,097,511
Cost of sales THE AR (3,162,109) (2,348,361)
Gross profit EF 988,400 749,150
Other income and gains EH U A R Uz 5 77,481 21,135
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ko X (75,664) (61,406)
Administrative expenses THAX (218,905) (196,776)
Other expenses HAFAs (33,902) (3,216)
Finance costs & R A 6 (110,904) (88,785)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT FI 7 626,506 420,102
Income tax expense i8Rz 10 (135,915) (93,171)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERiiaH 490,591 326,931
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hip 2 EESHE
Exchange differences on translation of BB INERS R IE K =58
foreign operations (334) (610)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME KEFEEEWREE
FOR THE YEAR 490,257 326,321
Profit attributable to: UR AT FEf @R -
Owners of the Company RATHEBA 11 490,587 328,644
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AE S 4 (1,713)
490,591 326,931
Total comprehensive income attributable to: - JA'™ AL S 2 H ek A58
Owners of the Company PA/NSIEZ RSN 490,253 328,034
Non-controlling interests IR AE RS 4 (1,713)
490,257 326,321
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A AT EiEARER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF HEAEESKRET
THE COMPANY
Basic AR 13 RMBO0.752 RMBO0.521
AR#0.752 T AREE0.521 T
Diluted b5 15 RMBO0.737 RMBO0.521
AR®0.737 ¢ AR#0.521 7T

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR AR

31 December 2013 R=ZFT—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—-=%F —T T4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E =& 14 2,680,214 1,545,279
Prepaid land lease payments TEf T AR E IR 15 94,608 92,697
Intangible assets mEE 16 1,672 3,132
Payments in advance JafFIAE 18 6,769 7,863
Deferred tax assets REFIRE B 28 21,498 18,290
Available-for-sale equity investments AT SR AR E 19 29,418 30,098
Total non-current assets IEmBEERE 2,834,179 1,697,359
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories T 20 76,629 63,384
Construction contracts BEAR 21 117,870 48,840
Trade and bills receivables RUINE 5708 kRN ERIE 22 1,801,263 1,281,444
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - 5] Rk
other receivables HoAth FEMGRIE 23 229,538 59,747
Pledged deposits EIRTF R 24 346,522 214,820
Cash and cash equivalents He MREEEY 24 894,732 698,088
Total current assets MEEERE 3,466,554 2,366,323
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and bills payables JERTE S R0E RIENRE 25 1,292,961 515,365
Other payables and accruals H eI RUIE N fE R T FOE 26 182,571 175,259
Interest-bearing bank and other loans BB ERIT M EMER 27 869,628 917,354
Tax payable FERTETISHL 33,276 26,140
Total current liabilities mENBERTE 2,378,436 1,634,118
NET CURRENT ASSETS FEEEEE 1,088,118 732,205
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEERREEE
LIABILITIES 3,922,297 2,429,564
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PERRR

31 December 2013 R=—ZE—=F+_-A=+—AH

2013 2012
—E—=5 ZE—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT ARETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other loans BB ER1T R EAE K 27 681,281 289,080
Deferred tax liabilities FREFRIBRE 28 86,860 58,497
Deferred income IR 29 555,044 230,075
Total non-current liabilities JEmBAaERE 1,323,185 577,652
Net assets BESE 2,599,112 1,851,912
EQUITY WX
Equity attributable to owners EAT T AEILHER
of the Company
Issued capital BT 30 46,247 42,606
Reserves w1 32 2,503,875 1,766,543
Proposed final dividend R R AR B 12 48,954 35,921
2,599,076 1,845,070
Non-controlling interests FEfEARHELS 33 36 6,842
Total equity SRR 2,599,112 1,851,912
Liu Hongwei Sun Jinli
SaT 4 e’
Director Director

EF EBF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREmEER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HEZ =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAERAER
Difference
arising
from
acquisition
Saety of non-
fund controllng
Share Statutory ~ Enterprise Share surplus— Exchange interests*  Proposed Non-
ssued ~ premium feserve  expansion option  resene**  fluctuation Wi final controling
captal  account*  Contributed fung* fnd*  resene’ %% resene’  Relained SR dividend inferests Total
B BB suplst v NE BRE  EREB By oot EREE #i Tl R equiy
fE EEE SARH BRES  ERS B BB RERE REEM 2B RERE & B EaRE
(nofe30) (note32)  (ote32)  (note32)  (note32)  (note3D) (note 32) (nofe 33)
(W#30) (W32 (WD) (WE32) (WD) (Wasy) (32) (M)
RMBOOO RMBOO0 ~ RMB00O ~ RMBOO0  RMB'0O  RMBOO0  RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0O  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBIOOO
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2012 W-%-—%-A-A B/ 391,169 13,669 69,427 27400 46,685 - 4082 91626 2,100 17045 152364 455 1528199
Total comprehensive income TER2ANREE
for the year - - - - - - - (610) 328644 - - 38034 (1713 3631
Issuance of bonus shares (note 30(e)) ~ STALR (R3E30(e) 6633 - 68 - - - - - - - - - - -
Evercise of share opions frigkEmE 132 5%l - - - - - - - - - 6123 - 6123
Transferof share option resenve uponthe /7{EERIERS
evercise o share optons ElhERESY Y - - - ) - - - - - - - -
Equity-setled share opfion hriERRER
anangemens (note 31) (M31) - - - - - 4314 - - - - - 4314 - 4314
Transfer from retained profs ahaRBEH - - - 155 9 - - - (2.3%) - - - - -
Capitl contributon from HERAEERRR
non-controling Shareholders ighn}
of a subsidiary B - - - - - - - - - - - 4,000 4000
Provide for safey fund surplus resene. IR 2ECRBEE - - - - - - Bm - - - -Bm - Bm
Utsation o sefey fund surplus resene. - BIRR2 G RERE - - - - - - 3B - - - - 30 - 3B
Final 201 dividend declared - - - - - - - - - - (170d5)  (17045) - (17,049)
Proposed final 2012 dividend (note 12)
(Kisr12) - - - - - - - - 3% - B9 - - -
At 31 December 2012 WoF-2F
t2A=1-8 2606 39615 7,036 70983 8179 48544 - 3472 1206614 2,100 %921 1846070 6842 1851912
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEERDE

Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=T—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATREARGE
Difference
arising
from
acquisition
Safety of non-
fund controlling
Share Statutory ~ Enterprise Share surplus — Exchange interests*  Proposed Non-
Issued  premium resenve  expansion option reserve  fluctuation [l | final controlling
capital  account*  Contributed fund* fund*  reserve* %2 resenet  Retained il dividend interests Total

BET BB suplust i3 A7 BRE  AeER Ei  opoft  ERE% B Tl EEE equy
fx  EER BARR: GRS BRS e G RERE RERRC 22T AERR &3t B EEeE
(noe 30) (note32)  (note32)  (note32)  (note32)  (note31) (note 32) (note 33)
(WE30) (Wes2)  (WeEs2)  (MWaEs2)  (MaE32)  (WiE31) (Hit32) (Ht33)
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2013 R-F-=F-A-f 42,606 399,615 7,036 70,983 28,179 48544 - 3472 1,206,614 2,100 35921 1,845,070 6,842 1851912
Total comprehensive income for the year  XEE2ENRETE - - - - - - - (334) 490,587 - - 490,253 4 490257
Issue of shares (note 301a)) B (M5 300) 2454 253900 - - - - - - - - - 256354 - 256,354
Share issue expenses B OEGEEY - (1849 - - - - - - - - - (1849 - (1849
Evercise of share opions f1iEieE 1,187 49870 - - - - - - - - - 51087 - 51057
Transfer ofshare option reserve upon the 7R BB SR E
rercise o share optons Higsn - 2488 - - - (2488 - - - - - - - -
Fquity-seted share opton hrsgERERE
anangements (note 31) (K31) - - - - - 2112 - - - - - 2,112 - 2,112
Transfer from retained profts SYEREER - - - 1,198 599 - - - (L9 - - - - -
Capltal contibution rom HBARSEERAER
non-controling shareholders g
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - 116 116
Change in onnership nterests FEEBHIEN-ENE
inasubsidary without oss of control -~~~ AT ERERES - - 5 - - - - - - - - 5 (5) -
Aequistion of non-contoling nterests ~ 4E-FIHBAT
of a subsidiary kR - - - - - - - - - (1,079 - (L079)  (6921)  (8,000)
Transfer to confrbuted surplus** Bl IV 3 - (40,0000 40,000 - - - - - - - - - - -
Provide for safety fund surplus resenve }EW%&A%E% - - - - - - 63002 - - - - 63002 - 63002
Utiisation of safety fund surplus reserve - - - - - - (63,002) - - - - (63,002 - (63,002)
Final 2012 dividend declared (nofe 12)
12)‘ - - (36847) - - - - - 35921 - (35921)  (36,847) - (36,847)
Proposed final 2013 dividend (note 12) M I-ZERHRE
(H12) - - - - - - - - (48,954) - 48,954 - - -
At31 December 2013 WIE-ZE
+-A=1-A 46,47 678,024 10,194 72,181 28,778 28,168 - 3,138 1682371 1,021 48954 2,599,076 36 2,599,112
. These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEREREREGAEVMBMRARAZGE
RMB2,503,875,000 (31 December 2012: RMB1,766,543,000) in the B AR #2503875000 (=& — =4
consolidated statement of financial position. +=A=+—8 : AR¥1,766,543,0007T) °

b Pursuant to a resolution passed at the general meeting held on 28 May 2013, an * BER-_ZE-—=FAA-F+N\BETZKR

amount of RMB40,000,000 was transferred from the share premium account RACBEBZ—BARAZR EBARK
to the contributed surplus. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a 40,000,000t Bl mBREREHAR
company may make distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed e BEBE-—NN\—FERERRE * RAIA
surplus under certain circumstances. EETREATREARKRPRAEBRREL D

Ik °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

an\ EE%/)H:E%

Year ended 31 December 2013 HEZ =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—T-=f —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARETR ARBFT
CASH FLOWS FROM EYTHEANRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BRI AT A 626,506 420,102
Adjustments for: BLATIBEELHFAZ -
Depreciation e 14 64,299 51,769
Amortisation of prepaid TE T A0 & ORI
land lease payments 15 2,014 1,947
Amortisation of intangible assets EmILEESE 16 797 709
Provision of impairment of Eh R BGRIE R E R
other receivables 23 - 250
Provision of impairment of B EERERE
intangible assets 16 1,063 1,120
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - BE&
plant and equipment RiEEE EE 7 28,505 182
Equity-settled share option expense A B BRI 31 2,112 4,314
Exchange losses b 3 518 7 2,318 36
Interest income FEUA 5 (6,669) (3,631)
Deferred income released BEEEMIETERA
to profit or loss 29 (53,169) (3,168)
Finance costs AR 6 110,904 88,785
778,680 562,415
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL(Eh) (13,245) 463
Increase in construction contracts BEAREM (69,030) (815)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JEUE 5 57008 I e W IR N (519,819) (289,893)
Increase in prepayments, deposits TERFIE - FT& Kk
and other receivables H A FE KGR TEIE hn (125,688) (22,845)
Increase in trade and bills payables e B 5 5/08 R FE T RIB A 10 777,596 217,253
Increase in other payables and accruals Eo MRS SR IE K FEET SRR E hN 25,779 18,280
Income tax paid [SARIZIECS (103,624) (124,446)
Receipt of government grants B UEUER T # B 29 378,138 118,472

Net cash flows from operating activities BEEFIESRAFRE 1,128,787 478,884
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

SERIRER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=T—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=% T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PiEE ARBTR ARBEFTT

CASH FLOWS FROM BRETHELANRLSRE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, BEME  WMENMEEEE

plant and equipment (1,331,803) (364,450)
Purchase of intangible assets EEBEEE (400) (396)
Increase in prepaid land lease payments T AR & FRIEE AN - (3,925)
Payment to the directors for purchase of Al NN Bl g e

non-controlling interests of a subsidiary RESFH - (13,385)
Purchase of an available-for-sale BEHDERSIEE

equity investment - (380)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, &M - BB K&

plant and equipment IHE 2 8508 20,000 160
Increase in pledged deposits IR FE 0 (131,702) (160,838)
Interest received BT B 6,669 3,631
Net cash flows used in investing activities & /BRI HIFEE (1,437,236) (539,583)
Net cash flows before financing activities BB S B RIMIR € L F 5 (308,449) (60,699)
CASH FLOWS FROM REESELENRERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN TS FR0E 256,354 -
Share issue expenses & EITRE (7,849) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling MB A RIEERREM T E

shareholders of subsidiaries 116 4,000
Increase in an amount due to FEN—FHMEAE

a non-controlling shareholder of FEFEE R A% R SRIBIE N

a subsidiary 9,828 -
Proceeds from exercise of share options AT E AR AEFT 1S HUR 51,057 6,123
Proceeds from bank and other loans RITREMEFETEHIE 1,577,653 1,328,309
Repayment of bank loans IRITEREE (1,233,178) (787,435)
Payment of other financing costs T EMBERA (11,658) (18,769)
Dividends paid BIRE (36,847) (17,045)
Interest paid BERFLE (98,898) (71,237)

Net cash flows from financing activities RMEEDRESRAFRE 506,578 443,946




74 China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

an\ EE%/)H:E%

Year ended 31 December 2013 HEZ =T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—T-=f —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AREBTT AREFT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRREEBEYEMER
CASH EQUIVALENTS 198,129 383,247
Cash and cash equivalents FHzBeRRESEEY
at beginning of year 698,088 315,496
Effect of foreign exchange EXRESHHTLE  FH
rate changes, net (1,485) (655)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBEEREEED
AT END OF YEAR 894,732 698,088

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND R&RIALSZEMER ST
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTEE 24 894,732 698,088




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BIREAR R

31 December 2013 R=—ZE—=F+_-A=+—AH

ZR-SFFR PRERAXKHERMIERER AR

2013 2012
—E—-=%F —ET-CF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARETT ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R 14 15,287 16,248
Investments in subsidiaries RPN RS = 17 - -
Due from subsidiaries FEUH A RIFRIA 17 1,120,039 367,546
An available-for-sale equity investment Al EHER AR E 19 11,838 12,209
Total non-current assets IEREEERE 1,147,164 396,003
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Pledged deposits EIRER 24 27,035 -
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESFED 24 6,631 7,927
Total current assets REEERE 33,666 7,927
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENE(E
Other payables and accruals Eo A FEAS 5RE K BT FB 26 16,129 3,710
Due to subsidiaries JERTHMIE R B F A 17 44,348 -
Interest-bearing bank loans M EERITE R 27 945 33,394
Total current liabilities mEEERT 61,422 37,104
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERETE 27,756 29,177
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRHARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,119,408 366,826
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Interest-bearing bank loans M SERITE K 27 522,681 6,280
Total non-current liabilities JEmBBERE 522,681 6,280
Net assets FEE 596,727 360,546
EQUITY HEZS
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 46,247 42,606
Reserves & 32 501,526 282,019
Proposed final dividend FR AR AR B 12 48,954 35,921
Total equity AR EE 596,727 360,546
Liu Hongwei Sun Jinli
B4 4 m&i8
Director Director
Ea EZE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

BAFEERAR MY RE

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+=-A=+—8H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 24 October 2003. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Center, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) were principally engaged in the design, manufacturing,
supply and installation of conventional curtain walls and building
integrated photovoltaic (“BIPV”) systems, as well as the manufacturing
and sale of solar power products. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Strong Eagle Holdings Limited (“Strong Eagle”), which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee that
remain in effect, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

2.1

ATEH

B B3 K (5 B BT AR B BR 2 =) (TR
AR NRZZEZ=F+A=+mARE
REFMKIAERREREEAT -
2N B) ) FE AT % 35 BZ 3 3k 7% Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda » "2 A1 E B & FE 7
NEBT BT 168-200 57 =12 L E
ERAE31#3108F °

FA - AREREMBAR (RS [
B ) TBREEREREIOCREE—
B ([ eREE—t]) faRt &
- HERRE - ARKIGREEmEE
KIEE - FR - AEBEZEXBOMEE
WHEBAEE

EERAE  ARFINRKERAB AR
U5 8 B 20 B & 7 AR S A9 Strong Eagle
Holdings Limited ([ StrongEagle ) °

AR

KB HERNRAEEERBEREMERE
28 (BRI BREER ) - Eh e
KEEeHEREES ([FERST2ER
BEE DIENEREREREEES
FPEAZ B E B DAERNBRE
SRR g R REHRESR
BemaE  UREBBARIGIINEKE
HRE - AMBHMREZE L KANEHIR
B BRRBRTAIN - AUBERERIEAA
RE(TARE ) 2REMEBEHTE
AAEREAN TR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+=-A=+—8H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2013. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1 RBEE(E)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 St BRI EET

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

RAFEOFBRET - AEEF R
T HIER] RS RT B B 7 i

2l
IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of BB REER  HERMERE LN
International Financial Reporting Standards 15155 E 15BN RN EE G
— Government Loans BHEER — BITE
AEHERT
IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: B samERl  HERM RS LN
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets ETHRIERT ETFEBIA -
and Financial Liabilities RE - BiefEE
AL HEENET
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements BERBBmERN  GRUFHE
£10%5;
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements BROBREE ALY
E115
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities BRUBREEl  REMEEZERRE
F12%
IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 ERMBREER RSB REED

IFRS 12 Amendments

— Transition Guidance

F10%; - BIRET
HEERE IR

F105% - BREHRB
EEAE RN

BRI BEREER  ERAEEREER
F12%1E7] F12% — HEHSIN
{E:T
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BREBRERER  ArEEHE
£13%;
IAS 1 Amendments Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of B e Eal HEE @ EAE 15
Financial Statements — Presentation of ltems of E 1555 HBHENZS)
Other Comprehensive Income - A2 EK=ER
B2 5)RERT
IAS 19 Amendments Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits et HEF 2 ERE 1957
F19%E7] ESWEFINERT
IAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements il S il BUYBHEX
F 275 (E3T)
IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures Eiles-fa il REER AR
0855 (18153T) BEPERE
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 EFtBURRIEEEE (5)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a BRUHGRERE BAELEERY

Surface Mine ZEQE20% FIBRA
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in ZEENFE RZZ——FRRBEM
2009-2011 Cycle May 2012 —E——FEFy  SEERHMERE
FRYE RRIRERT

The adoption of the new and revised IFRSs has had no significant FLANRTET RASS 5T BUPR BF 5 3R 5 S R
financial effect on these financial statements. ZEUBMRIBERNBELE -

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3 EfE4#1E 4% 5k & i EER Bt

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS &
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, REBWARZEVHHREPEATS
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial BB R AR A AT R] RIS RT BIRR
statements. g E AR -
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments® BREBREEL  2IA°
£95
IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and Hedge Accounting and amendments to RRMBIREER  HHBHTEREETAR
IAS 39 Amendments IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IAS 39° F9%  BEREB  HEHEER
REERETIRR  E9% - HEYH
GiloS-F il FEERETHR
£395 BT Bl @i ER|E 39573
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and ERMBREER  HERNERSEL
IAS 27 (Revised) IAS 27 (Revised) - Investment Entities! F10%  ERHBE  F10% - ERHB
Amendments WEEAZE12% BEEHE12% R
REReHER Bl & ERIE 27 5
275 (F3T) (183]) - RELE
GO
IAS 19 Amendments Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Bl 25 ER| HER e ERZE 195
Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: F195%ET EEET — REEF
Employee Contributions? T8 - ESHFERT?
IAS 32 Amendments Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Gl E il HEIR @RI 325
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets E32%15F PRITA 27
and Financial Liabilities' — AR Es
ERBENER]!
IAS 36 Amendments Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets: il S HER S ERE 365
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for E365IEFT BEjfE - FrHAE
Non-Financial Assets! BRI % B R

Tt
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3 EfE4#1E 4% 5k & i EER Bt

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

IAS 39 Amendments Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement - Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting'
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
IFRIC 21 Levies*
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in
2010-2012 Cycle December 2013*
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in
2011-2013 Cycle December 2013?
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions
5 Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1

January 2016

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace |IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on
the classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity shall classify
financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or
fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of |AS 39.

BHREER(E)

RS RETHERIE 395
F39RERT ZHIAR : #FRHE
— VETREEREN

Bl EM AT
BREBasEl  EEREEE®
F14%
BReEBRscE 4F
ZEGEUR
—E-FEZ RZE-—=F+-RE%
ZE-—FESy NS EERMBREE
FEN# BEEET
—E—£F RZE-—=F+-RE%
ZF-CFEHy NS EERMERE
FEN# R BT
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3 EfE4#1E 4% 5k & i EER Bt

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in IFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of IAS 39.
Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS 39,
while changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option (“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the
fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must
be presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder
of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit
risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. However, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
which have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the
Additions.

In November 2013, the IASB added to IFRS 9 the requirements
related to hedge accounting and made some related changes to IAS
39 and IFRS 7 which include the corresponding disclosures about risk
management activity for applying hedge accounting. The amendments
to IFRS 9 relax the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness
which result in more risk management strategies being eligible for
hedge accounting. The amendments also allow greater flexibility on the
hedged items and relax the rules on using purchased options and non-
derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments. In addition,
the amendments to IFRS 9 allow an entity to apply only the improved
accounting for own credit risk-related fair value gains and losses arising
on FVO liabilities as introduced in 2010 without applying the other
IFRS 9 requirements at the same time.

BaEEA (8)

R-ZF—TF+ A BRGHEPES
eRERMAERMRRMEREENE
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3 EfE4#1E 4% 5k & i EER Bt

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) B s R (&)

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this BRI S SR B IR e £ 2K
entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39 on impairment of financial R AERZE 39 5% - IREMEEVRAT

assets continues to apply. The previous mandatory effective date of R ERIE 3TN RV E ERRE
IFRS 9 was removed by the IASB in November 2013 and a mandatory FEMESI#EER - EEgsERE
effective date will be determined after the entire replacement of 1AS 39 EFe RN T —=F1+— A5
is completed. However, the standard is available for application now. EHMEERFE SR A R HI A B E

The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases, ok fl A2k A BB R 2 E R BIR &5

when the final standard including all phases is issued. YERIZE 39SRTERA R FIAREE © A 7%

AR R - ¥ O AR
REERRIE - AEBBEAEELR
fRRB(MEE -

Amendments to IFRS 10 include a definition of an investment entity BIBR B IS 3R & 2E RIS 10 SRS 5] B IR
and provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities BEEXEmEs  UREHERETEE
that meet the definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are ENERNEE ZRNBIIMER - B E
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in B /AR 1R B R B 75 R 5 A R 2 9 SR
accordance with IFRS 9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential MiBARIEBREBRE A EEYER -
amendments were made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Revised). The MmIEE AR - BIR I SIRE 2RI 12
amendments to IFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements for S5 R EBR e st RIS 27 95 (K185 ) B
investment entities. The Group expects that these amendments will not HITREBIEE] - BRI IS ERIE 12
have any impact on the Group as the Company is not an investment FREMSEI IR E TR TR T -
entity as defined in IFRS 10. ANEFETER - BRAR T IEER A5

WMELBNBIORAMAENRE LR
WRZFEFT B ISR EBER A

zZ= .
=

e

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally ER e ERE 3250 TR (AR A
enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial assets and financial GIEREIFITHIEEN | LR IES R
liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting BEERCHEBENESE - ZZBFITE
criteria in IAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central clearing BRIt 2R FE 325 MR HZER
house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not HEERB (PP REEMRS) 2 &
simultaneous. The amendments are not expected to have any impact A MZRESTIRAERPHNEEESR
on the financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption e e AEEBE =T —NF—A—Hie
on 1 January 2014. Nz E8s] - M%EEEHE e

HAREENF IR L RBBRAERF
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEESTBEHME

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit or loss
to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, construction
contract assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises (only if there are
revalued assets in the financial statements), unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESHBEME (8)

=}
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties FHER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: EUATER—THER AR EEEE
FH
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (@) EEAA—BALTHZALTZH
and that person BEIREKE » Mz AL :
() has control or joint control over the Group; (i) sk K EEH A EE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAKEEEAFE %k
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) AAEBESAEEGQFR
Group or of a parent of the Group; FTEEBABMEP—FZK
=
or %
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) ZAREBEEMMGSE TIEM—IA
applies: “7%15-% .
() the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZEEEAEEBR %
pdpd=VN:IK
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (il ZERBRS XRELBHHE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the NElREERE (TS —K
other entity): ERNERTE - [MEBAFK
ERMBEAR)
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) ZERBEASEHYAR—F
third party; =AREERE
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (iv) ZERBARF-FETEMNEE
entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ ME—REBRZ
FoFEEOBME AT
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRME (8)

,HI]

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies: (Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced as intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EEEBHRBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation Y% BERRERITE (B)
(Continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost FIEWE  BEREBITEDUESE
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value (nil BEAHET A E A F A A= H R
to 5% of cost) over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives BREE BITEE5% B o EfhEHA]
are as follows: ERAFHNT
Land and buildings 50 years T MAEF 504
Plant and machinery 5-10 years MBI 5-104F
Motor vehicles 5 years RE 54
Office equipment and furniture 3-5 years WARERREA 3-54F
Solar photovoltaic power station 25 years YL AN R 254
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different E—IEME  BEMLENSITI BT
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis [B A R F HRRS - SZTE B WA THIRS
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual BEEFRHD 2HIE - MEHD Ty
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and BRIt ITE - FepBEE  AIFRTHE
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end. WEREELERSMBEERER

WA (EE) -

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part Y% - E REEEE SEE VG E
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future ROETEMORHESTBERHEF AR
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or BT RR AL F 25 B 45 | EFERR ©
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the EHESREMRZEER LEREE
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds MEZEABEZNEINAEEBEE
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. HEMSFIRFREREENETE -

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment TERTRBETRERNYE BER
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment A - THBARK AN (B R AT R (B S 1E A
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of 8 - BRI E - KAREREH
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing B EEZEX AR ELBEABER
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress MERNCEERAR - EEIEREIR
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and AEFERR  BEFSEZME  BE

equipment when completed and ready for use. NEE 2 EE R o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRME (8)

,HI]

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but
are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

Software purchased is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Operating rights represent rights to operate solar power water heating
systems granted by certain schools and are stated at cost, that is,
the fair value of consideration received or receivable in exchange for
the construction services provided under the relevant operating right
agreement, less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEBEERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued) M| EE(B)
Research and development costs WL R B A
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred. FR AR AR EER T AR -
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is FEmERIBEEEMNRY  BE4ASE
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the EREMFERAU T SEE - F FUEXRE
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will NIERE - B : SER B E AR FE A
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability HEMRMAIITH  AEBETKEERN
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic EEIRHFEASHEZEENRE N &
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the EBRBINAIEALENZ  sE5EST
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development. KEZIB B RIER - A RIEFRERZF A
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria SITERIMES c THAELIREN
is expensed when incurred. EnRERIERNEERERASER -
Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment R AE B B BN T DA RR AR {R] B (B B 18
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the IME - BEMBABEEES BE
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five years, NEHERABER T BB AFHEE
commencing from the date when the products are put into commercial FAFREH -
production.
Operating leases FERY
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of NEEHRBENBRI D EHRERRD
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. SBHBEAMABNAY  HIELER
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases, 2 o WAEBEARBEA - RBLEALD
net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profit or R FE RS BR B B A AMER FE A
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. HEEEE  RESENHEERARE

sSHAFER ©

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated LEHNETHEN L HEEREE L
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the LARKATI(E - G UEZEZNEERA
lease terms. FERR o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Operating leases (Continued)

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in “other income and
gains” in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in profit or loss in “finance costs” for loans and in “other expenses” for

receivables.
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss in “other income”, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in
“other expenses”. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in profit or loss
as “other income” in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount
is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEBEERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets BRI ERMEE
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part ETABERT  —BepEE(JEA
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed REEEREEN 3D - —HRE
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when: SREEN D) BELIEER(ENE

REEGAEPBIRRKRBE)

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or . REEEIRRENENEK
fE 3k
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from o REBEERENEEEENR
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash SREEF - KERIE—IBE#
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass- FlREAERR EEERE
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred ROBERT  BEBABRRESR
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the BNTE=F  RAEE (a) #EE
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the T B LIRS E MR KD R
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the BR[O - 8k (b) WESE N IRE X
asset. BEEBRISHERAME R - B

EHEEZIREERIEHIE -

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from EASEDEEREWNZIBEEMGR
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates SREMEFNETCEF L - Hi
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership TERAREZBEE 2 BREH AR
of the assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially MO SEVESEENRAZBEE
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the KB AEB D R RN El # - B I EZ
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the HEEMZEGE  ARESFERNE
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group BFES MZIEEREENRERRZ
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the BERE - RZBAT - AEEITERE
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and AR EEEEERMABEENER
obligations that the Group has retained. MAEEREOENREBFHEES

o

fio
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is @ measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEBEERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREERE(HE)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) LA BRI A2 AR i 2 B ()
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an ZEEMNREDAEYRBEREERT
allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest o mMABENEIBRITEEETER - 7
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and BUTAEE VR D ERESERER - I
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash FE Bt ET 2R EEE A AR R A€
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and MEMFIRZG - RARWETRE 215
receivables together with any associated allowance are written off when ST B R R E W R T 53 (R () AR A
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery. RIS o
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment WA BEE AR - BRRRERREE —F
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the 23 EEDREE IS RN
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss A R Se BT IERR < BB B 18 i A T B 1
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write HERIEANSR D o MFE SR E & UYL[E
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to “other expenses” in ZUEFF A B [HEMmAZ] -

profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments AR ELRE

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the HAUHEHENSRIEENS - EFER
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that HHRK - AEBEFGE-IERES A
an investment or a group of investments is impaired. KRERRRENTBIKIBEFEHEST -

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising IMRAMEHEEERBE - SFEAAN
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment MRiE A L) BB AR EBEE
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment B8 BELAEEZTERNE
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other UREEL - REMEEREERITA

comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss. BamP R -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment losses on that investment previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction

costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities included trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing bank loans.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEBEERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued) LA’ (E)
Subsequent measurement #EE
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their CRAENREFEEANENTE
classification as follows: 18
Loans and borrowings EXRER
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are KAATERE - M EERRIEREE L
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest BN ATE  RIEFTRFELTE
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in A BRIEAEERMNERZE k2 - iz
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in BRANER - BEKIEHERE - RRE
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through PR R SHR - Was KBS IBm P IR
the effective interest rate amortisation process. R e
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or B S AR AN A BB AT (B 30m (B FIAE A
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of BRI R SER A E s A&
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is TR - BREFIREHETABRD 2 BEK
included in finance costs in profit or loss. PN
Derecognition of financial liabilities BRI EREE
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the EoMBEETHNRFERER - BUEK
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. W AR IEERESRAaE -
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the m—ERESHEBEHRER—ERA
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing BRESGHEBEENNES—HEME
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification ERTER - SIRA B EMIRTEKEE
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition o BRSNS MRIER ILRRRE
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying BEVERNTEERE  MMENERR

amounts is recognised in profit or loss. EEENEEPER -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials and labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the
costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an
amount due from contract customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHEEME (8)

,HI]

POLICIES (Continued)
Construction contracts (Continued)

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to contract customers.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in “finance costs” in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

pUrposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EEETBHRBE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued) FRig# (&)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary FIERIRERNER  RPARERE

differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused RAREARIEEBNEEEER AR

tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it IERITEE EE - 1B R PR G T AE LAFE SR AL

is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the MR E RS ER - AT AL

deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax ERARSABIEE ST ARSARIBERE

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: B - 8

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary o AR—ER S (ZRHWIEAER
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or A0 ETTRERTIR RN EEK
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, BEEENAMRER=E8H
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting RREEHRBEE BB THEE
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and F 7 ¥ FE R T e T ok S R I K

FENBEREI - R

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated . NI EMNG] E’J%xé{FEEE’]—HD
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only BEREZE  BEEMBEER
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary Ef‘ﬁﬁﬁi%iﬂﬁﬁ—]?ﬁiﬂ#x%@
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable N PERTL s R O] AR NS i =
profit will be available against which the temporary differences EIFHERAIE BRI o

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of FEFIBEENRERERSERERR
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer FH - WIRZE T B eh B MERT
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or ENABRME R IEERIEEER
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred 1F o MR - REERES R ENT
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are HBRTREERNECHBEE @ Wi
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient RIREA B SO R Bl 0m A1) A B FR BT A =5 50
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax DIEETIEE ER T AR o

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are FEHIBEEMGEUNEERERNE
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability EREENARERERNHEES
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or WRERRERE HIFTHER LB

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. RIMRLR (RFE)EHE -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the

goods sold;

(b)  from construction contracts, on the percentage of completion
basis, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction contracts” above;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEBEERBE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued) W\ EERR (48)

(c)  from the rendering of services, the percentage of completion () RERBEHABGHVRANTIED
basis, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Contracts LEAER  RTX[8%EE] &
for services” below; SETHCR R — R

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest (d) FBEWAKLEANELE  KAKS
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future Bh T A BT F HAREE R SRR
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to MR EeHEERTFE
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and BARIR R AERF EEER &

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive (e) A% BT A AR S U B A 51 A 4 )
payment has been established. VA2

Contracts for services B%EeR

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the agreed EHEHERBABRBENE REKA

contract amount. Costs of rendering services comprise labour and oo RSB BHKABEATIMEME

other costs of personnel directly engaged in providing the services and B8 MR A ISR A B BB K FE(G A

attributable overheads. BER -

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based on the ARESBEEEENWA - BRAFITTRK

percentage of completion of the transaction, provided that the revenue, AR FTE 2R TR R AR ] LA A] SE&T

the costs incurred and the estimated costs to completion can be = AREEHENBRAUR S THOE

measured reliably. The percentage of completion is established by DR o TR B D L2 ED B

reference to the costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs HRRAERZ S TR B AR BN AR

to be incurred under the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract BliEE - E6RMER TR A &t

cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent 2 WAEAATKREA S HSEER -

that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated EEREERANERBBRLER - L
by management. BETHR#A (S -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Contracts for services (Continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an
amount due from contract customers. Where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract customers.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit
expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at

the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EEEBHRBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued) LA B ARz (&)
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, BRELERBNRMTeRRAY - B
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional ML E X Z R W R B M SRk
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting IEFBIEM - AIZBAT T REREE
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is ZMASEEBEREHEREFBE
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions B EEALETE S SR R SRS 5
are satisfied. HVRER o
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a IR E SRE Y RS BVIE R T
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been 2B R B GREmE - SIERZE
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an TEMER - BRI BB R o tho - T
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair IR D AERE AR EEREMR
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the EBRSREEETEEEEFNES
employee as measured at the date of modification. MEMIAESRTE  AXFESE
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had AR i 45 SEEN WA BUE - S AR AN
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised EEEUHE B BRI RS - oAt EEERER
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award 2 AT ENEER - EREERSNESE
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or Hl 2 IEFB IR REKIBTR T 2 52E) -
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for B2 - AT —ERFTI - Wi SR Eh 4 AT 88
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on B - WER T HEEETEAENR
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated HEE - RIRESE AT BN AR B IR 52
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in BB - PTEREEE R 5 5ER) 2 BUS
the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction BZREFHEF -

awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional RITEEREC B EYERMATES
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share. fe U as 2 BEINIRAD S o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Other employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local government. These subsidiaries and their employees are
required to make monthly contributions calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ wages and salaries, subject to certain ceilings and
local practices set by the relevant local governments, to the central
pension scheme. Other than the central pension scheme, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China have no legal obligation for retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. Contributions to these plans
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independent administered
fund.

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre are charged to profit or loss
as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EEEBHRBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs BERE
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction Wi BRI EECEREE (RS
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a RREREEERTEREIHEENE
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, E)EEEENEERNEARETUER
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation bt tERZEEBET KA - ZFEE
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially RANERERZEEET S LED|#
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the RS IHE MR ISR LE - BAES
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure BEREENRYNEEEENERRE
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. R Elz=E TUEREAEERR
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are R o FTA HAa B B AR E £ A
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an BRAERY - BERAHAEMNEEE
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. ERBZIARNE 8 EARRE M A A 4E

B o

Dividends B2
Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate FEEEZNARBR BN R ERS
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement HoADEAE—HEBNRBEENS
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders il BEEZEREBERERBREASH
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by EALE - BEIRREHEZERBENEIR
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability. RERAEE -
Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared. FHRERREZELSIK o Fith - R
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a REEZERTIRE - FERIERAARE -

liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, as this is the
principal currency of the economic environment in which the Group
operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit

or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions.

The functional currencies of certain companies within the Group are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
profit or loss are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation

reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make significant estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these significant assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Percentage of completion of construction contract works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of individual contract of construction work, which requires
estimation to be made by management. The stage of completion
is estimated by reference to the actual costs incurred over the total
budgeted costs, and the corresponding contract revenue is also
estimated by management. Due to the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the activity is entered
into and the date at which the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget
prepared for each contract as the contract progresses. Where the
actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual contract costs
are more than expected, an impairment loss may arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT")

The Group’s operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
PRC CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters relating to PRC CIT
have not been confirmed by the relevant local tax authorities, objective
estimates based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other
related policies are required in determining the provision of PRC CIT
to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact the
income tax and tax provision in the period in which the final outcome is
determined. The carrying amount of PRC CIT payable at 31 December
2013 was RMB33,276,000 (2012: RMB26,140,000).

Impairment of receivables

The provision policy for impairment of receivables of the Group is
based on ongoing assessment of the recoverability and the aged
analysis of the outstanding receivables and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of those receivables, including the
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of the customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances might be required. At 31 December 2013, impairment
provision for receivables amounting to approximately RMB2,955,000
(2012: RMB2,955,000). Further details are given in notes 22 and 23
to the financial statements.

FEEHE ()

st A RERR (F)
PRI ([ R RATEH])

AR B O R B K P 2 E P B A R R AR
TEIMERMEN - AR ERTBIMXA
BERNE TEERKE WABHREKE
BR - RFEZEREAHENTBE
B OERREMBRBREEL TR
it EETRBECEASHEME o WH%F
EENRERRATARKILEHNE
o ERSTEMGHMAREEREN
FHAEORREE - R _F—=F 1=
A=+—BHENTEEEAEHNE
H{EAARKE33276,000L(ZF—=
& AR®26,140,0007T) °

JEW BB E

I8 B R R IR R A BB EUR R AR IR I
LT R IE A 24 A ] 0] M o e B e D AT O 4
BT AR E R EHEED - VAR E
ERRBEERERSTEERHANEA
B RESEENEARBEKER
B o A S EE SR BUR R R
BYHENER - AIFEZEITHEIMNE
#HoMm=—E—=F+=-A=+-—H &
WHIERERENEOSEOAAR
12,955,000 (ZFE—ZF : ARM
2,955,0007T) ° #— 2 IFH I M %R
RMtEE22 ] 23 °
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 3. XEFRMAET(E)
(Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued) EEtAEERER (B8)
Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment W - BB R B (EHE R FIFERE

=]

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, REEME  BENMIEEENFERT
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such HMFIREER - AEEEZEEZIER
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or = IE SRR AERFREEMS
improvements in production, or from a change in the market demand BEMEENRBHMSER  BEXN
for the product or service output of the asset, expected usage of the TEEMS  TEHERIER  EELER
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance RE - UAREERZRAEEIIALUR G
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The BRI RE - BE
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience Al{E AFERIE AN SEEE AR BN
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. The HUBEMNSREE - MM - BE K
depreciation amount will be adjusted if the estimated useful lives BEEE MG EATEE SRS
and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and equipment BEEBAGIE - AESEST
are different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual LAFAE o Al AR RFISBEETIRNE
values are reviewed at each financial year end date taking into account W FE B REBR LER Y -

changes in circumstances.

Impairment of non-financial assets L HEEZE

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment AEBRSREPRTEFEIEERE
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non- EfBRRAMREDRR - E@EE
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators A P& BN AR EE ) e S UK (2 AR
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment HRE - EESRSELESBNREER
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit mHEAENEEEF e EAREE
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value W B A R EAEE - ATFERE -
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair STEAREERDERANE  BHUAAF
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding HEERBUBEETAEBORINEE
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or RSAEHE KA BEEmERDEE
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the ENDENKASE - EstEFREER
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management B BREENEGTREBEEXRESE
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or EBMNBERRRRERE - WEES
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to BZMIRE  LHEZEReREZR

calculate the present value of those cash flows. B -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of
a similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste or competitor actions. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period. There was no
impairment provision for inventories as at 31 December 2013.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets should be recognised when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets at 31 December 2013 was RMB21,498,000 (2012:
RMB18,290,000). Further details are given in note 28 to the financial
statements.

FEEHE ()

A EERER (B8)
BEZ RAEEE

FEZASRHEER B REEFEE
RZIERHEE - R R ERELE
ZIEFRTARAR o ZE AR D ER B AT
MEEREERBELSR  Breg
AREP ML mFETRMER
EARE - EBENTREPREN
AEZERFT e RZE—=ZF TR
=t+—B  YEFERERE -

CEFIREE

1 1% 3R AT B 845 FE R Bt i ) LA HDRUR AT
MBEEE BREAECHBEE - &
FAMRB AR IERT & F 80 A] s e &2
HEURRRBERERBIELEXR
HET - BTN FRANELEHIEE
EtE N-_ZE—=F+_-_A=+—
B BEERESENEEOEAARK
21498000 (=T ——F: AR
18,290,0007T) » B AH# — FeHIEH
LA BA TS SRR P 7E 28 ©
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 4. FEPEEIRUIA

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents an appropriate
proportion of contract revenue of construction contracts; the value of
services rendered, net of business tax and government surcharges;
and the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added tax and
government surcharges, and after allowances for returns and trade
discounts.

The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit for the year were mainly
derived from curtain wall (including solar power products) and solar
photovoltaic power station supply and installation service, which is
regarded as a single reportable segment in a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s senior
management for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment. In addition, the principal assets employed by the Group

WA AREENEXE) FHEEAR
EELOINARMWA - REREHE
B MREXHEBANINER : k2 &
EmMBERER MREERLRBA
o - WEsRERESIHIELE
1o

AEBNRARFERENEBERRA
TRRFEEEEB(BELAREUEKEG
BEEm) HENZERY  HERRAE
—HE2®/OE - BAAKBESREEE
SO BLER R EEF A2 RER
BT B e bt REBERNEE
BEMPPEIARE - Bt - RAREAR

are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, no segment analysis is AR RNHEEIN  BES|D I -
presented other than entity-wide disclosures.

Entity-wide disclosures DEBATMARXHE
Information about products and services B REm RAREEIER

The following table sets forth the total revenue from external customers
by product and service and the percentage of total revenue by product
and service during the year:

TREFIRE R KRGS D H KB IMED
B AU A B A 4 7 o N AR
SN EBWABDEL

2013 2012
—E—-=5F —ZE—CF

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

AREFx ARBT T
Construction contracts BEAR 3,259,641 78.6 2,294,716 74.1
Sale of goods EmiHE 879,355 21.2 795,143 25.7
Rendering of services RERE 6,131 0.1 3,140 0.1
Sale of electricity BHHEE 5,382 0.1 4,512 0.1
4,150,509 100.0 3,097,511 100.0
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 4. FEEERUN (B)
(Continued)
Entity-wide disclosures (Continued) BB ATIMARMEE (&)
Geographical information Hh i B
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a) KREINBEFAUA
2013 2012
—Eg—-=%F —E——4F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREFx ARBT T
Mainland China )P N S 4,117,016 99.2 2,951,241 95.3
QOutside Mainland China FR B A B DA SN [ 33,493 0.8 146,270 4.7
4,150,509 100.0 3,097,511 100.0
(b)  Non-current assets (b) FERBEE
2013 2012
=5 —T——%F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR ARET T
Mainland China a)EipN S 2,767,956 99.5 1,632,723 99.0
Hong Kong B 15,307 0.5 16,248 1.0
2,783,263 100.0 1,648,971 100.0
The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of LB EEE R IR EEMERE
the assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred tax assets. 2o AUTEESR T AREERE
Information about a major customer B FEEFPHIEN
Revenue of approximately RMB657,717,000 (2012: Nil), accounted B—RE—FF  SFEREMNEZEF
for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the year, was derived SHEEGHIN—AEE  (EHEEE
from sales to a single customer, including sales to a group of entities EUWALARE57,717,000 (= F
which are known to be under common control with that customer. ——F: T (EFRERERFERAD

10% SRKIA I ©



China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R iR

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+=-A=+—8H

5. HAbUg A R ras

HWA RS RATT

5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

2013 2012
—T-=f —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT
Interest income FEUTA 6,669 3,631
Government grants* AT B * 16,644 10,315
Deferred income released to BEERmIRER RS
profit or loss (note 29) (FftzE29) 53,169 3,168
Others Eith 999 4,021
77,481 21,135
* There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these * TR A G B 5% S5 4 B B SR AR AR Bl sk
grants. REMF -
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RIERE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEXADHTAT -
2013 2012
—E—-=% —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETTT
Interest on bank loans ARAFTRNEHEED
wholly repayable within five years RITERBIFE 74,446 56,934
Less: Interest capitalised B BEAMEFE - (1,221)
74,446 55,713
Interest on discounted bills receivable BHIR U IEF S 24,800 14,303
Other finance costs E AR &R 11,658 18,769
110,904 88,785
Capitalisation rate of borrowing costs & BN E AL = N/AFRER  3.75% + HIBOR

3.75% MEERTT
RIS
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ZR-SFFR PRERAXKHERMIERER AR

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. Ba¥FigniiFl
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: NEBE G RDEF Y BRIATRIF :
2013 2012
—E—-=% —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P ARETR ARBFIT
Cost of construction contracts SR KR RIGAAR
and design services 2,486,337 1,728,483
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKR 670,634 615,350
Cost of electricity sold EEENKRAK 5,138 4,528
Depreciation e 14 64,299 51,769
Amortisation of prepaid land TEf LT E IR
lease payments 15 2,014 1,947
Amortisation of intangible assets | ESE 16 797 709
Minimum lease payments under EME T REEENK
operating leases 4,648 5,383
Research costs i 23,703 30,414
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN & 5,998 5,453
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA(BREER
and chief executive’s remuneration  fTBUAREE B (FI5E8)) -
(note 8)):
Wages and salaries and T& - e kiEEEF
relevant benefits 154,614 110,847
Pension scheme contributions IRIRESET B 5,697 4,494
Equity-settled share option expense ~ BXANAEE 2 BERER 31 2,112 4,314
162,423 119,655
Impairment of intangible assets | EERE 16 1,063 1,120
Provision for impairment FEW IR R B
of receivables 22,23 - 250
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME « HE &
plant and equipment KAIEE BB 28,505 182
Exchange losses, net I 5 g8 o SRR 2,318 36

117
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERITHBIEEME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed RIBEERBEAE X ZMER AT (8
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Frl) &% EmARREE RGNS
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”) and Section 161 of the Il ENFREE RITHREZ NS
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: /IR
2013 2012
—E—=% T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
Fees e 4,558 4,718
Other emoluments: Hibe
Salaries, allowances and e EMEEYHGR
benefits in kind 1,503 1,138
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHR 36 33

6,097 5,889
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EBERITHAHNNE(E)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Fees ¥i& - Ry iB4AE& remuneration

#HE REYHR sHEIfRR FRiMABT
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000

ARETRE AREBTR ARETRE ARETR

2013 o
Executive directors: WITES -
Mr. Liu Hongwei BT HESE 1,415 578 12 2,005
Mr. Sun Jinli Redrs 1,179 434 12 1,625
Mr. Xie Wen HEE 1,179 491 12 1,682
3,773 1,503 36 5,312
Non-executive directors: IEMITES -
Mr. Cao Zhirong BEERSE 107 - - 107
Mr. Li Huizhong Tefrt 107 - - 107
214 - - 214
Independent non-executive directors: B IEHITES -
Mr. Wang Ching TREE 157 - - 157
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SXEESAE 236 - - 236
Mr. Cheng Jinshu Baesttt 178 - - 178
571 - - 571

4,558 1,503 36 6,097
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTHAEZMNE (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind  contributions Total
Fees #H& - #Bh RIRE  remuneration
we  REDFE B MR T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFRT AREBTT ARETT
2012 —E—CF
Executive directors: WITES -
Mr. Liu Hongwei BT s E 1,465 426 11 1,902
Mr. Sun Jinli Redrs 1,221 328 11 1,560
Mr. Xie Wen B E 1,221 384 11 1,616
3,907 1,138 33 5,078
Non-executive directors: IEMITES :
Mr. Cao Zhirong EEREE 110 - - 110
Mr. Li Huizhong Tefrst 110 - - 110
220 - - 220
Independent non-executive directors: B IEMITES -
Mr. Wang Ching TREE 163 - - 163
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon GBS E 244 - - 244
Mr. Cheng Jinshu (A ptad 184 - - 184
591 - - 591
4718 1,138 33 5,889

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year

(2012: Nil).

FAWETAEFEHITHAIENELR
BERECAFM ZH(—F——F:
&) -
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HliEHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors FRN Al seFEEFEEMUES
and the chief executive (2012: two directors and the chief executive), RITBRBEH(ZE——F MUESK
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of ITHEBE)  BENHFMFBIEHR X
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2012: two) highest M8 B TMAL (=T ——%F : Wfizr)
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the FARRNREFRIITRBHERTEE
Company are as follows: FRNFHEFBAT -
2013 2012
—E-=% —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETIT
Salaries, allowances and e EUREYH =
benefits in kind 1,703 1,526
Pension scheme contributions RIRESET B 22 18
1,725 1,544
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid THE N R N IEE E R IETTBAEE &
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as SHEEMHEWNT ¢
follows:

Number of employees

HEE S|
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /&7 T2 1,500,000 7T 2 -
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRiEBIFAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the respective jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, Samoa and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda, Samoa and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong, Macau and Nigeria profits tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in
Hong Kong, Macau and Nigeria during the year.

The provision for PRC CIT was based on the respective CIT rates
applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as determined
in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the
PRC for the year.

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as

follows:

REBARENKE R RIFEMEZR A
FREBFTE S RMERAES - IRERE
ENFEH

REBRE BEIMNEBREZESE
RER  AEEEARMNBRE  BEE
DRRBRIESNERMAEH -

REAREELENETE  RFIRER
) 35 B A S RER AR R R BOR ) - 83
B EE - RPIRIE B FERS B
B -

Bl PTISTRB TR R B REM
BRRIERNEBEEMEHE &M
KR ANFEPENEBRAETER M
HPIEE -

REEMFHAIERZRDWT

2013 2012

—E—-=%f —ZT——
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT

Current — Mainland China BHIFTSIR — RBIRRE

— Charge for the year - FAAX 110,760 73,519
Deferred (note 28) PR (M 5E 28) 25,155 19,652
Total tax charge for the year FARIBFY 28 135,915 93,171
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FRf@HRHX (/8)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the FRAEEANSRQARME R AERAE
applicable tax rates for the jurisdictions in which companies within the AREGTEORBANRFNARIEZ H
Group are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as B BRI R ERTIE T A A
follows: BRANT ¢
2013 2012
—E—-=%F —ET-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBETFTT
Profit before tax Fr% A A 626,506 420,102
At the applicable tax rates LEAHEE 98,625 64,508
Expenses not deductible for tax RN A 8,927 7,937
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on RS E P B K B A A
the distributable profits of the B9 R] 93 F 4 5% Fi 2=
Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland BUFENBI R E
China (note 28) (f17E28) 28,363 20,726
Tax charge at the Group’s REEBEBRBEROBIBHL
effective tax rate 135,915 93,171
In accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT ERE2EARRRRAGR_ZZLF=
Law”) approved by the National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007, A+ NBHERBRCEMSEE (D
except for Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai EFBHRE]  BRINGEEZEREER
Singyes”) and Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Technology Co., Ltd. EAERAR([HREHEE ) MG E R
(“Singyes Renewable Energy”), which are further mentioned below, the gEREHR AR AT ([EERER]) (1
Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to CIT at a rate of TIGE— AT AN - AEERF
25%. RNEERI T A RIZEEAN 25% KR FT1S

7 o
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11.

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FRfeHRHX (8)
In 2011, Zhuhai Singyes and Singyes Renewable Energy were awarded BB EEMERRN_T——FE
the certificates of High Technologies Enterprise (the “Certificates”) BRERSEME  EREMBR - &
by the Guangdong Provincial Science and Technology Department, HEBRBEBRERE S TIEHE
Guangdong Provincial Finance Bureau, Guangdong Provincial Office EReEmeEEE(FE])  85F
of the State Administration of Taxation and the Guangdong Provincial EXEABBEZABRZFANEW - IREH
Local Taxation Bureau, which are effective for three years from the CEMSEE  WEEEREENER
respective dates of issuance of the Certificates. In accordance with the R-E-—=FNEACEMGHRNER
New CIT Law, the applicable CIT rate for Zhuhai Singyes and Singyes 15% -
Renewable Energy was 15% for 2013.
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 11. KATHAE AEILGEH
COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for the He_ZT—=F+=-_A=+—HIF
year ended 31 December 2013 includes a loss of RMB15,968,000 & ARREE ABIGGRE BN EEES
(2012: loss of RMB13,269,000), which has been dealt with in the BARK 15968000 ( —F—_4F:
financial statements of the Company (note 32). BB AR 13,269,0007T) © 2 #HMNA
NEII TR (HEE32) -
12. DIVIDENDS 12. g2
2013 2012
—E-=%F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Proposed final — HK$9 cents EHRHRE — ST @R 9B
(2012: HK$7 cents) (ZZ=—=%F : 7%
per ordinary share 48,954 35,921
48,954 35,921

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

REZHIK 2 RS BRARRRIR
RIEEBIRBF ARG L -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. FASLiBERERIEEAE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
652,800,351 (2012: 630,874,338) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

iR F

BRERZFTIBIEARRD R ERRER
FAABGERGEFRENBEITER
R% &9 hn 4 F 15 £652,800,351 R (= &
——%F : 630,874,338 %) 51 & °

BRRESERNREAR AR LB ER
REABGFRENFTE - SHEERA

VE BB IEFHBRRNFERBITHE
BREE (ARFTESRERRTN) - XA
R BRI P A BOE B BRI BT
AT ERERBEEETHEREINET
B8 -

SEESRERANEERNTIRE

2013 2012
—E—=% T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
Earnings &
Profit attributable to ordinary FTEERERREEAT
equity holders KRN B RS
of the Company for the basic B AL R
and diluted earnings calculations 490,587 328,644
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

13. XA B BIERTAAE
iEEiRER ()

Number of shares

I8 E
2013 2012
—T-=f —E-—F
Shares B
Weighted average number STESRERRTIN
of ordinary shares in issue BETT RN
for the basic earnings per INAEFI9 8L
share calculation 652,800,351 630,874,338
Effect of dilution — weighted WETE — TR
average number of g -
ordinary shares:
Share options R AR A 13,226,556 109,371

666,026,907 630,983,709




ZR-SFFR PRERAXKHERMIERER AR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 ¥R AR Y o

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+=-A=+—8H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥2% - MERRE
Group FEE
Office Solar
equipment photovoltaic
Land and Plant and Motor and furniture power station Construction
buildings machinery vehicles WAE K in progress Total
THREF etk RE HRERER pRI ] ERIR Loh)
31 December 2013 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
“E-=#+-fA=1+-H ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
Cost: BE:
M1lanuary2013 RZZF-=F
(reclassified) -A-H
(EHH8) 1,050,218 268,230 11,569 22,822 272,823 21,999 1,647,661
Additions AE - 6,894 1,007 739 620,658 663,031 1,292,329
Transfers fe 12,820 610 - 211 653,271 (666,912) -
Disposals hE - - - - (92,608) - (92,608)
Exchange B %
realignment (531) - - (5) - - (536)

At 31 December 2013 R=F—=F
TZA=t-H 1,062,507 275,734 12,576 23,767 1,454,144 18,118 2,846,846

Accumulated RithE:

depreciation:
M1lanuary 2013 RZE-=F
(reclassified) -A-A
(EF7B) 25,873 55,707 6,380 7,430 6,992 - 102,382
Charged for the year  AFEHTE
(note 7) (WE7) 21,378 22,168 1,888 8,291 10,574 - 64,299
Disposals e - - - - - - -
Bxchange realignment % (44) - - (5) - - (49)
At31 December 2013 RZE-=%
+-A=t+-H 47,207 71,875 8,268 15,716 17,566 - 166,632
Net carrying amount: FREIF(E :
M1lanuary 2013 RMZE-=F
-A-B 1,024,345 212,523 5,189 15,392 265,831 21999 1,545,279

31 December 2013 R-F-=%
+ZA=1+-A " 1,015,300 197,859 4,308 8,051 1,436,578 18,118 2,680,214
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. %% - BERRE (B)

(Continued)
Group (Continued) XEE (&)
Office Solar
equipment photovoltaic
land and Plant and Motor and furniture power station Construction
buildings machinery vehicles N Nk in progress Total
T REF BERE g REREE FREH rEIR @
31 December 2012 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“5-—F+-f=1-H AREFT ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL  ARETR
Cost: A
Mllanay20l2  R-E-%
-A-H 546,152 231,808 11,640 11,493 - 511,098 1,312,191
Additions AE % 9,534 291 6,420 - 319,584 335,925
Transfers AE(ENIH)

(reclassified) 503,967 26,888 - 5,005 272,823 (808,683) -
Disposals hE - - (362) (%) - - (458)
Exchange realignment % 3 - - - - - 3
At31 December 2012 MZF—ZF

+-A=+-H 1,050,218 268,230 11,569 20822 272,823 21999 1,647,661
Accumulated ZithE:
depreciation:
Mllanay20l2  R-E--%
-A-H 9,026 32143 4438 5122 - - 50,729
Charged for the year  AFEHE

(reclassified) (B9 E)

(note 7) (HE7) 16,847 23,564 2,034 233 6,992 - 51,769
Disposals e - - (92) (24) - - (116)
Exchange realignment X% - - - - - - -
M 31 December 2012 RZF—Z

+-A=t+-H 25,873 55,707 6,380 7430 6,992 - 102,382
Net camying amount:  FRTETF{E :
M1lanuay2012 RZF-ZF

—H=F 537,126 199,665 7,202 6,371 - 511,098 1,261,462
At31 December 2012 M=F—ZF
(reclassified) +-A=1-H

(BH98) 1,024,345 212503 5,189 15,392 265,831 21999 1545279
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31 December 2013 —Z—=F+=-A=+—8H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s land and buildings with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB318,655,000 (2012:
RMB275,061,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (note 27).

As at 31 December 2013, the application for the property ownership
certificates of certain buildings with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB283,905,000 (2012: RMB287,888,000) was in
progress. Those buildings can only be sold, transferred or mortgaged
when its relevant ownership certificates have been obtained.

Company

31 December 2013
—2—-=%+=H=+—H

14. %% - BERRE (B)

R-B—=F+-A=+—H  K&£H
IR FELHARE318,6550007L(=
T—Z—F: AR¥275061,0007C) &Y
ET T REFEERMEARTAEE
HERITE R 2 PR (35 27) ©

RZE—=F+-A=+—8  EEF
H45 AR# 283,905,000t (ZE—=
£ ARM287,8880007T) 2 & T 1
FYEEEFEEARBEBREES -
ZEEFEADRGEAENERESR
FAHE - EEIRE -

FAE
Office
equipment
Land and and furniture
buildings WMAERE Total
Tih RiEF RIZRE “ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT ARETT

Cost: %

At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=%—H—H 17,525 165 17,690
Exchange realignment PE H (531) (5) (536)
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F+=-A=+—H 16,994 160 17,154
Accumulated depreciation: FEHRE -

At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=%—H—H 1,280 162 1,442
Charged for the year REFHE 473 1 474
Exchange realignment P& H AR (44) (5) (49)
At 31 December 2013 R_EBE—=F+=-A=+—H 1,709 158 1,867
Net carrying amount: AREFE :

At 1 January 2013 PR e L =l 16,245 3 16,248
At 31 December 2013 AR e o e 15,285 2 15,287
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Company (Continued)

31 December 2012
—E——F+ZA=+—H

14. %% - BERRE (B)

AT (5B)
Office
equipment
Land and and furniture
buildings P NE Total
T RIEF RAR A st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT ARETTT

Cost: Jo % N

At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—HF—H 17,522 165 17,687
Additions A= - _ _
Exchange realignment VE H R 3 - 3
At 31 December 2012 RZEBE——F+-A=+—H 17,525 165 17,690
Accumulated depreciation: REHRE -

At 1 January 2012 R-_ZFE——F—H—H 830 130 960
Charged for the year KEZFE 450 32 482
Exchange realignment ME 5 AR - - -
At 31 December 2012 WZZE—=—F+=-A=+—8H 1,280 162 1,442
Net carrying amount: ARERE :

At 1 January 2012 RZF——F—H—H 16,692 35 16,727
At 31 December 2012 WZE——F+=-A=+—H 16,245 3 16,248

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s land and buildings with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB15,285,000 (2012:
RMB16,245,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (note 27).

RZB—=F+ZA=+—H ' ARQ7A
BREFENH AR 15,285,00070 (= F
——4F: AR¥16,245,0007T) Kt
REFEEMEAR TAEBNRITE
2R (H5E27) -
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. FEft s HERIE

Group

AEH
2013 2012
—E—-=% —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January W—A—HZKRmE 92,697 94,644
Additions NE 3,925 -

Amortisation charged REZEE (MIEE7)

for the year (note 7) (2,014) (1,947)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—BZEHEE 94,608 92,697

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s prepaid land
lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB93,542,000 (2012: RMB91,604,000) were pledged to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 27).

The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is situated
in Mainland China.

RZE—=F+=-A=+—H ' ~%E
BREFEH AR 93,542,0007T (=&
——4 : AR®91,604,0007T) K& T
Bt T ERBRIEIFIEAR TAS
ERIRITERZ R (H:E27) -

ME L IREF RS - LR T
BIKEE -
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31 December 2013 —Z—=F+=-A=+—8H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Group FEE
Operating
Software rights Total
B0 T st
31 December 2013 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—F—-=f+=-H=+—H AREFR AREFT AREBTR
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—HF—H 1,264 4,107 5,371
Additions NE 400 - 400
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H 1,664 4,107 5,771
Accumulated amortisation: RatiEes -
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—HF—H (506) (613) (1,119)
Provided during the year (note 7) A% (FizE7) (302) (495) (797)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H (808) (1,108) (1,916)
Impairment: WiE :
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%F—HF—H - (1,120) (1,120)
Provided during the year (note 7) FR#E#E (MI7E7) - (1,063) (1,063)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H - (2,183) (2,183)
Net carrying amount: ARTEE(E :
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—HA—H 758 2,374 3,132

At 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+"_HA=+—H 856 816 1,672
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31 December 2013 —Z—=F+=-A=+—8H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

16. R EE (/&)

Group (Continued) AEE(E)
Operating
Software rights Total
CINEs K 45T
31 December 2012 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E——F+=ZA=+—H AREEFIT AREFIT ARETT
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2012 R_E——F—H—H 868 4,107 4,975
Additions = 396 - 396
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=—F+=A=+—H 1,264 4,107 5,371
Accumulated amortisation: RatiEes -
At 1 January 2012 R-E——F—HF—H (292) (118) (410)
Provided during the year (note 7) A% (FizE7) (214) (495) (709)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=—A=+—H (506) (613) (1,119)
Impairment: WiE :
At 1 January 2012 RZZE—=—F—H—H - - -
Provided during the year (note 7) FR#E#E (MI7E7) - (1,120) (1,120)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H - (1,120) (1,120)
Net carrying amount: AREFE :
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—HA—H 576 3,989 4,565
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+=-A=+—H 758 2,374 3,132
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RKBATIRIIRE
Company
b /AN
2013 2012
—F-=5 T
RMB RMB
AR AREE

Unlisted equity investments, at cost ~ FE_ETARAIGE « LKA

— Singyes Green Investment — BEGERE (BB BRAA
(HK) Company Limited ([EZELEERE])
(“Singyes Green Investment”) 2 2
— Singyes Green Technologies — BRI EBR AT
(HK) Limited (“Singyes Green ([BBEEAEE])
Technologies”) 1 1
— Basic Force Group Limited — Basic Force Group Limited
(“Basic Force”) ([Basic Force ]) - 7
— Top Access Management Limited — Top Access Management Limited
(“Top Access”) ([ Top Access]) 7 7
— Singyes Engineering (H.K.) — BREETRERAA
Co., Ltd. (“Singyes Engineering”) ([HExTE]) 1 1
— SunTreasure Group Corp. — SunTreasure Group Corp.
(“SunTreasure”) ([SunTreasure|) 6 -
17 18
Amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the Company’s RZE—=ZFR_FT—Z-F+=A
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were =+—0 BERARAEERAERNA
unsecured, interest-free and were repayable on demand or within one 1 FE LR 2 S I BB & B3R IE B R KA
year. R ERBRERKN—FAEE -
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s interests in certain subsidiaries R-ZTE—=F+_A=+—0 &~&£H
and amounts due from subsidiaries aggregating to approximately RETWB AR 2SR WK B A A
RMB1,120,039,000 were pledged to secure bank and other loans RIEA H 4 ARE1,120,039,000 7T 2
granted to the Group (note 27). BIREAR TAEBMRITER L H M

B R (FRE27) -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. PMBASIMIRE (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: WEBARZFFEHANNT ¢

Place and date of

incorporation/registration Nominal Percentage of
and place of business value of equity attributable
Company name SR R R paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
AT &R EZHARAY HRBRAEE AATEGEDERE  EEER
Direct Indirect
B ik
Singyes Green Investment *  Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Investment holding
BEGERE" 8 August 2001 2T REER
B/ B8

—“TT-FN\ANR

Singyes Green Technologies * Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Design, manufacture, supply and
LT 7 April 2009 18T installation of curtain walls
B/ B8 Jat o BhE - RERTRER
“ETNEMALHA
Basic Force *! British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong  US$1 - 75% Investment holding
1 July 2009 1% REER
RBEZHES/ B

“EENELA-R

Top Access * British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong  US$1 100% - Investment holding
6 July 2009 e REBK
RERUES/BE
ZZTNELARHE
Singyes Engineering * Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Design, manufacture, supply and
WETR* 3 August 2009 1AL installation of curtain walls
B/ B RE BUE - RERZRER

“ETAENAZR

Macao Singyes Renewable ~ Macau/Macau - - 100% Design, manufacture and
Energy Technology 23 December 2010 assembly of solar and
Co., Litd. B,/ R wind products
(“Macao Singyes”) “E-ZF+-A-1+=H Fat - BUERMBRAGE

RPIEERERRIR 2 BEEE
ARAT

(NRFEE )



136

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+=-A=+—8H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. PMBASIMIRE (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued)

Place and date of

MB AR FIEHIIMT - ()

incorporation/registration Nominal Percentage of
and place of business value of equity attributable
Company name ML B R paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
A& EEWERAY YRRAEE ESAC A SR A 3 5
Direct Indirect
E# ik
SunTreasure Group Corp. ¥ Simoa/Simoa US$1 100% - Investment holding
(“SunTreasure”) 8 January 2013 IE REZR
SunTreasure Group Corp. * B /TEfE D
(I'SunTreasure ) ZE-=5-ANH
Singyes Green Energy Bermuda/Britain US$10,000 - 75% Investment holding
Holdings Limited * 1 March 2013 10,000% T REER
(“Green Energy BRE/HRE
Holdings") —“T-=%=A—H
Singyes Green Energy
Holdings Limited *
(['Green Energy
Holdings )
Singyes Green Energy Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 - 75% Investment holding
Investment Limited * 15 January 2013 1%L RERR
(“Green Energy BB/ BH
Investment”) —Z-=%—-A+HAA
BEZERRRERRAR
(TgesiRiE )
Zhuhai Singyes? PRC/Mainland China US$12,000,000 100% Design, manufacture,
RgHE? 21 August 1995 12,000,000 7T supply and installation of
i EARE curtain walls and solar
—ANEENA=—1—H photovoltaic power station

A RE - HERZERE
RAGREARE
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. PMBASIMIRE (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued) WEBARZFFBEHNNT « (8)

Place and date of

incorporation/registration Nominal Percentage of
and place of business value of equity attributable
Company name ML B R paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
AB &M EEWERAY HRRAEE E G SR A 3 5
Direct Indirect
E# ik
Singyes Renewable Energy ** PRC/Mainland China US$13,125,000 - 100% Research, development,
HERRR 11 October 2007 13,125,000 7T manufacture
B ARE and sale of photovoltaic
“EE+F+A+-H solar products
e SEREER NG ER
Zhuhai Singyes Xinye PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% Development of new energy
Electricity Technology 30 November 2009 AR 20,000,0007T materials, research and
Co., Ltd. ? HE B ARRE development of marine
(“Singyes Xinye") “ETNF+-A=1A biology technology
KERESNMBERLAAS FERRTA - R
(IB%EN]) 8 Rl
Zhuhai Singyes Photovoltaic  PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% Research of photovoltaic film
Technologies Co., Ltd.> 31 March 2010 AR 20,000,0007T KRBT

(“Singyes Photovoltaic”) "B/ B KRE
HEREXERFEERAR —T—SF=A=1—H

(TEEXF])

Hunan Singyes Solar PRC/Mainland China RMB411,403,300 - 100% Research, development,
Technology Co., Ltd. ¢ 18 August 2010 AR 411,403,3007T manufacture and sale of
(“Hunan Singyes”) e/ B RE photovaltaic products

L YNE 725 —Z-TFN\ATNR % FE HERHEARER
BRAFS

(MmEE])
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. PMBASIMIRE (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued) WEBARZFFBEEHINNT « (8)

Place and date of

incorporation/registration Nominal Percentage of
and place of business value of equity attributable
Company name ML B R paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
A& EEWERAY YRRAEE ESAC A SR A 3 5
Direct Indirect
E# el
Singyes Energy-saving PRC/Mainland China US$34,011,200 - 100% Research and development of
Technology Co., Ltd. *3 7 December 2010 34,011,200% T energy-saving products
(“Singyes Energy-saving”) B /REIKFE MR REEHSEER

HEREHRENEERAR® 2 FF+-A+H
(T8 5RE )

Tianjin Singyes Renewable  PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100% Research and sale of photovoltaic
Energy Technology 25 July 2011 AR#30,000,0007T products
Co., Ltd. AR HREREERRER
(“Tianjin Singyes”) 3 “E——#+A-1+HA
RERZIERER AR
(TR2EZ])
Singyes renewable energy Nigeria/Nigeria - - 100% Sale of photovoltaic products
Technology Nigeria 16 June 2011 HEKRKRER
Co., Ld. ERMEE,/FEAFE
(“Singyes Nigeria”) S Y R WAN=
BEIREANDE
RRERRTA
(TTERMIEER )
Xinjiang Singyes PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 77.5% Research and sale of photovoltaic
Renewable Energy 7 September 2012 AR 10,000,0007T products
Technology Co., Ltd. 4 HE B KR MERBEEHKRER
(“Xinjiang Singyes”) —E——#71A+H

s B RAR AR
(IFEEX])
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31 December 2013 —Z—=F+=-A=+—8H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued)

Place and date of

17. RMBATINIRE (£)

MBARZFIEHIIMT - ()

incorporation/registration Nominal Percentage of
and place of business value of equity attributable
Company name SR R R paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
AT &R EEHERBER HRBRAEE AATEGEDERE  EEER
Direct Indirect
B el

Changde Singyes PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100% Research and sale of photovoltaic
Renewable Energy 26 November 2012 AR®10,000,0007T products
Technology Co., Ltd. * RE /AR RERHENRKER
(“Changde Singyes”) —E-—F+-A=1+~H

PEREENERERAR
(IBEEx])

Hunan Singyes Green Energy  PRC/Mainland China US$25,750,600 - 77.5% Research and develop of
Technologies Co., Ltd.” 28 February 2013 25,750,600 % T electricity and new energy
(“Hunan Green Energy”) B /REIKKE MR RFALEBERIER

HEEER AR “Z-=#-A-1+)\H
BRRA)

(THE&esR))

Gansu Singyes PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000 - 77.5% Research and sale of photovoltaic
Renewable Energy 19 December 2013 ARE6,000,00070 products
Technology Co., Ltd. ¢ RE R E AR RAERHERKER
(“Gansu Singyes”) ZE-=E+ZATNH

HHREEMERER AR
(THEREE])

Wuwei DongRun PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 69.75% Research and sale of photovoltaic
Solar Energy 18 September 2013 AR 1,000,00075 products
Development Co., Ltd. 8 *EL/REIAEE HRRBEELRER
(“Wuwei Dongrun”) “T-=F¥AA+/\R

BB AR RS
NG
(TRBRE))

*

companies were pledged to secure the Company’s loans with principal of

US$90,000,000 (note 27).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s equity interests in these

: e e e

BN %

S N

R

Az BB ERIERASE

# A< %8 /390,000,000 T E 7R 2
PR (BgRE27)
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. PMBASIMIRE (B)

MB AR FIEHIIMT - ()

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued)

Green Energy Holdings acquired a 100% equity interest in Basic Force
from the Company, at the par value of HK$1. Upon completion of the
equity transaction, the Company indirectly held a 75% equity interest in
Basic Force.

Zhuhai Singyes was registered as a co-operative joint venture enterprise
under PRC law. As at 31 December 2013, the registered capital has been
paid up.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s 75% equity interest in Zhuhai
Singyes was pledged to secure the bank and other loans granted to the
Group (note 27).

Singyes Renewable Energy, Singyes Xinye, Singyes Energy-saving and
Tianjin Singyes were registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law. As at 31 December 2013, the registered capitals of Singyes
Renewable Energy, Singyes Xinye and Tianjin Singyes were fully paid up.
The registered capital of Singyes Energy-saving is US$50,000,000.

Changde Singyes, Xinjiang Singyes and Gansu Singyes were registered
as wholly-domestic-owned enterprises under PRC law. As at 31
December 2013, the registered capitals of Changde Singyes and Xinjiang
Singyes were fully paid up. The registered capital of Gansu Singyes is
RMB20,000,000.

Singyes Photovoltaic was registered as a foreign investment enterprise
under PRC law. In June 2013, Singyes Energy-saving acquired a 40%
equity interest in Singyes Photovoltaic from Xi'an Zhongrun Industrial
Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Zhongrun”), the non-controlling shareholder, at a
consideration of RMB&,000,000. Upon completion of the equity
acquisition, the Group held a 100% equity interest in Singyes
Photovoltaic.

Green Energy Holdings EIZEE 1787
M AN 2 7] U2 Basic Force #9100% A%
& o RIRIER 5T IE - RQRIE#
7% Basic Force #J 75% A& -

WEEEXDREBEFEERZAMAS
B R-T—Z=ZF1+_-A
=t—0 ZMEXEHR -

RZF—=FF+ZA=+—H A%
BIATRE EL A5 H 8 75% B B E
{E R R BBRIRIT R AR 2
R (FHEE27)

EEHEER - BEE - MR

RBEZTDRE R BIERIM A
EEACEX -R_T—Z=F1+=A
=t—H - EBEHMER B8XENL
REEENTMEADBHBR °
SEAPBE AV LM A% 7S /350,000,000% 7T ©

EEHEE FERERH&BHEED
BEFBEEEEMARNERE - B
—E—=Ff+ZA=+—8- - ¥
WMERHNBHARENTMERNERHK
B HREENEMEXAAARE
20,000,000 7T °

HWENEYBEPBEEREMAINE
hE-RZT—=FXA EEME
MR R AL B EE R AR
(TPa%esE ) s R 2 X ERI40% Ak
# - B AR ARMS8,000,0007T - 5
PR RER TS - AEBRFERERS
) 100% RS -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. PMBASIMIRE (&)

MBARZFIEHIIMT - ()

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued)

Hunan Singyes was initially registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint
venture enterprise under PRC law. During the year, the Group paid
up additional capital injection in Hunan Singyes aggregating to
HK$273,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB219,222,200).

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Singyes Green
Investment and Zhuhai Singyes, subsidiaries within the Group, on
31 October 2013, Zhuhai Singyes acquired a 25% equity interest in
Hunan Singyes from Singyes Green Investment, at a consideration of
HK$375,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB297,097,500).
Upon completion of the equity transfer, Hunan Singyes was registered
as a domestic enterprise. Its registered capital changed from
HK$500,000,000 to RMB411,403,300.

Hunan Green Energy was registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise under PRC law with the registered capital of US$35,000,000.

As at 31 December 2013, a 90% equity interest in Hunan Green Energy
was pledged to secure the bank and other loans granted to the Group
(note 27).

Wuwei Dongrun was registered as a domestic enterprise under PRC law
with the registered capital of RMB5,000,000.

R EEY SRR AR AP
IEBERE - NFR - AEEARR
BB B8 HNE A 4 273,000,000
77t (M E R4 A R #5219,222,200
7T) °

REASENBAREEGERE SR
WERET Tz —RpE RN_F
—ZF+A=1+—B  REEEUR
B 375,000,000 7T (HHER AR
297,097,5007T ) [A B A7 62 1% & YU
W BLZE 25% R iE - MRS E T
AR - R EEEMANERE - &
#t 1t & 7K fh 500,000,000 7 7T 5 22 4
AR# 411,403,300 7T °

MERERRDIREPBEEAEE
MAFIEELE FMELAR
35,000,000 7T °

R-TE—=F+_-_A=+—H " &
FEREIRI0% HRED EIRIEALRSE
EEERITREMERZ ER (M
27) °

RERBDREFEDEREMARNE
2% M E AR AR 5,000,000
JC °
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18. PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE 18. TEfIFIA

Group

%0
2013 2012
—E—-=F T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETFIT

Advance payments in respect of: LATRIE B MTE 5R0A ¢

Prepaid land lease payments TERT AR ERIA 2,486 6,411
Purchase of machinery IEE SRR 4,283 1,452
6,769 7,863

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS 19. [t HERFIRE

Group Company
K F48]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F 2T CIZB-=Z§ <—T—_-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRE ARETT ARBTR AREBTET

Unlisted equity investments, FEEMRAIRE -
at cost: WA

Weihai China BB K 29,038 29,718 11,838 12,209

Jiuhua New Energy NEFREIR 380 380 - -

29,418 30,098 11,838 12,209
As at 31 December 2013, the equity investment in Weihai China RZZE—=F+"A=+—8 "' RESE
Glass Solar Co., Ltd. (“Weihai China”) amounting to RMB29,038,000 RN EERAD(BERR]) 2K’
(aggregate investment of US$4,720,000) and the equity investment in A& E AR 29,038,000 ( BIEE
Jiuhua New Energy Management Co., Ltd. amounting to RMB380,000 4,720,000 7T) R NEFHERERE
were stated at cost as the Group has no influence and control over the RA a2 AR E AR 380,000 1%
entities. Meanwhile, since there is no quoted market price for such EXZIK@J{E M RN AN E B2 ST e
equity investments and the range of reasonable fair value estimates WRFZE N RIS - B - ARZE
is so significant, the directors are of the opinion that their fair value BRI EWmTIERE - BRARAERD
cannot be measured reliably. A EBEGETZEEER EFRE - H

RABEMEAAEGLE -
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS 19. T ERAIRE (E)

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s investment in Weihai China RZZE—=F+-_A=+—H" ' K
amounting to RMB11,838,000 was pledged to secure the bank and EERBBTFHEIRESBEARE

11,838,000 LEBMIAERE T AKER
SRIT RE A S AR (£ 27) -

other loans granted to the Group (note 27).

20. INVENTORIES 20. B&
Group
XEE
2013 2012
—E—-=5 ZE—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
Raw materials R 54,504 31,141
Finished goods BN 22,125 32,243
76,629 63,384
21. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 21. BESH
Group
FEE
2013 2012
—T-=f —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
Gross amount due from JEUN A REFHRIEEEE
contract customers 117,870 48,840
Contract costs incurred FrEUa RIBKAIN_E B s
plus recognised profits less FREES B EREE
recognised losses to date 846,498 600,885
Less: Progress billings R R R A E FE (728,628) (552,045)
117,870 48,840
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. R B SRIE R EWERR
Group
F%E
2013 2012
—E—-=% —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFTT
Trade and bills receivables FEUCE 5 50H R BRI 1,803,818 1,283,999
Less: Impairment T ORE (2,555) (2,555)
1,801,263 1,281,444
As at 31 December 2013, trade and bills receivables contained RZE—=F+-_A=+—H EKE
retention money receivables of RMB232,452 000 (2012: *”IE&THK?%TF@¥ET4&E1%§}\E
RMB185,954,000). #0232452000L( T ——F: AR

# 185,954,000 7T,) ©

The majority of the Group’s revenues are generated through AEBNRBALWNBBREESRE
construction contracts and settlement is made in accordance with the & WIRREERBAR SN ERTIETE
terms specified in the contracts governing the relevant transactions. BIGRRAEE o REB B ARE T HERR
The Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period BRPEERK—HEEE - @5
granted to its construction service customers. The credit period of fRi% %= P e EEHIARIERME - W5
individual construction service customers is considered on a case-by- REESRF (EE) - W—HERA
case basis and set out in the construction contracts, as appropriate. HRFTAEER  AIRSEENED AR
In the event that a project contract does not specify the credit period, N30 B E 150 HREEH] - Bibfk
the usual practice of the Group is to allow a credit period of 30 to 150 HEMS  AIRTAERRPNT =X
days. For the sale of materials, a credit period ranging from three to BAMEER - REDEARFIEREFH
six months may be granted to large customers. Trade receivables from FEWE 55088 B T8 AT R BEIR (AR TS
small and new customers are normally expected to be settled shortly IR EMBUENVEE - REBERB
after the provision of services or delivery of goods. No credit period is NI R FTIR R E R EEER - HINAE
set by the Group for small and new customers. For retention money EEmANEETIEERHNE RS - 25
receivables in respect of construction works carried out by the Group, H—MNFHERETIERTIE =R
the respective due dates usually range from one to five years after Fo REFWEFEKE S ;”Iﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁ
the completion of the relevant construction works. The Group does BRI e A M EE MR o
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade WESREREE °

receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. [EYG B S RIE R B EE

(%&)
An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of the RS AR - IRRARE HHA R IR EE
reporting period, based on the billing date and net of provisions, is as AEEAENEKE 55008 R EWERER
follows: ki CINE
Group
xEE
2013 2012
—E-=% —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARET T
Within 3 months =MEAR 1,137,479 737,358
3 to 6 months =& XA 452,994 381,710
6 to 12 months NE+ @A 141,781 102,257
1to 2 years —EWE 66,813 55,194
2 to 3 years = =4F 1,053 4,412
Over 3 years =FUE 1,143 513
1,801,263 1,281,444
The movements in provision for impairment of trade and bills JEWE SHIEREWER 2 BERE
receivables are as follows: g -
Group
FEE
2013 2012
—T—=% T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 2,555 2,555
Provide for the year (note 7) FREHE (FsE7) 958 =
Impairment losses reversed (note 7)  JEEEEREE (FiFE7) (958) =

2,555 RS
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. FEYG B S RIE R B EE

()
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that ERIRER W E 5 5RIE Ty A B %R
were in financial difficulties and the receivables are not expected to #MERFER BBETAIKEZERE
be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit WE SFIE - AEBWEBZSEHE
enhancements over these balances. BEMERmEMEE MR o
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables that are not AEEKRRASBENERE S KB ME
considered to be impaired is as follows: WEEIRIRER T T -
Group
FEE
2013 2012
—E-=%F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBETFTT
Neither past due nor impaired FBHAIRKRRE 1,698,118 1,228,943
Past due but not impaired: BB RRE
Less than 6 months past due AT RN E A 98,727 47,515
6 to 12 months past due BEIRE T AR 4,201 4,890
Over 12 months past due BT —REA L 217 96
1,801,263 1,281,444
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large R BB IR AR E A FE MR I Th LR 23
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history BN NS R RFER -
of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number 2 AR ERERRIE D HEE 25
of independent customers. The directors of the Company are of the NRFEB dARNEEERTELRE
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of RNEE) - BEBEHRDEE AT 2HK
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit B NRRIEERABERZSEMRIE
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The LR ERE - AEEWERZSERT
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over BEMEKTEREBREMEENARE

these balances. il
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. [EYG B S RIE R B EE

As at 31 December 2013, the Group discounted certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in the PRC, with a carrying amount in aggregate
of RMB672,340,000 (referred to as the “Derecognised Bills”, 2012:
RMB288,000,000). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity from one
to six months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with
the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the Group if the
PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion
of the directors, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amount of the Derecognised Bills. The
maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase
these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the
opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expense of
RMB24,800,000 (2012: RMB:14,303,000) (note 6) on discounted bills
receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.

(%&)

R-B—=F+-A=+—H  K&£H
BRIRE TR B R R TR A EREEE
A AR 672,340,000 TR EWEE (T
BIREERRR] —F—Z2F: AR
& 288,000,000 7T ) © A& EIR  #21E
BEREE A —ZXEA - REFRE
B - WP BAIRTTEL - BIRIEFER
ERFBEAAERAAERRLER
BUH2E])  EERR  AEBDHK
LHEREEHBRI S w&@ﬁ%
%o At - BERIEERKIEHEREZER
REAE  AEEEREHKIEERERY
HEH2ERARBBDZERILERRE
MABIRIBERMEATEBAN RS BR
HEREERE - E5RE - AE@EY
RIFERERNBEE2EN R EE
TR e

FRN - AEEERARBKERRERE
ERF B AR 24,800,000 (=

—4F: AR¥14,303,0007T) (H3E
@olﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁuﬁirxi
sl Rk E 1S
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. FAFIRIE » sTE R E M EY

RECEIVABLES HIE

Group

XEE
2013 2012
—E—=%f —E—-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFIT

Prepayments to subcontractors R BEEk

and suppliers HAER IR 59,351 23,068
Deposits HisA 35,562 25,447
Other receivables H b fE Y FRIB 135,025 11,632
229,938 60,147
Less: Impairment o RE (400) (400)
229,538 59,747

The movements in provision for impairment of prepayments, deposits

and other receivables are as follows:

FENTRIR - AT & KA A R E B

BEBHIIDT

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—T—=F T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 400 150
Provide for the year (note 7) FREHE (F1sE7) = 250
400 400

PREESESASYRE - Ll [Hi
FEWHRIR | ABRMN SR EE ) EITH
I #5E KIRC 8RR FE MR IR B B -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in “Other receivables” above are related to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

24. RERREEEYLIRIEH

PLEDGED DEPOSITS 2
Group Company
AEHEH AATF
2013 2012 2013 2012
= " T——F %= _"T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREBTT ARBTRT ARBTET
Cash and bank balances He MIRITHRR 894,732 698,088 6,631 7,927
Time deposits TEBIER 346,522 214,820 27,035 -
1,241,254 912,908 33,666 7,927
Less: Pledged bank balances B BERENES
for project bidding EIRIRIT 4R 411 - - -
Pledged bank balances RITERHE
for bank loans (note 27) EIRIRITAEBR
(F=E27) 27,035 20,000 27,035 -
Pledged bank balances RITEEMNE
for banking facilities EAPRITAEER - 18,035 - -
Pledged bank balances ERENE
for letters of credit HIPIRTT4E SR 19,750 44,106 - -
Pledged bank balances EREENE
for bills payable HHIRITEE R 299,326 132,679 - -
Sub-total NEF 346,522 214,820 27,035 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIReEEY 894,732 698,088 6,631 7,927
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24. RERIRNEZEYLIRIEH
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued) B (E)
Group Company
AEE E XA
2013 2012 2013 2012
—F-=F - IZB-=f —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRT AREBTT AREFRT AREBTR
Cash and bank balances and IR & MIRTTAEFR A
time deposits denominated in: K€ BT 3R
AP BT E -
- RMB — AR¥ 659,623 896,804 - -
- US$ — XT 550,138 3,641 6,609 1
~ HK$ — AT 31,359 12,400 27,057 7,926
— EUR$ — BULT - 63 - -
- MOP$ — RFT 134 - - -
1,241,254 912,908 33,666 7,927

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,

under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and

Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank

deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between

one day and three months depending on the immediate cash

requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short

term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are

deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ARETIT BRI ERREMER - A
i ARE A BRFERIMNEE I (D) K 45
[E - BERMNEEERE  ARERE
BBERELEINERBMRITEAR
BRmAHMBEE -

RITHSRE ARITERF K ZFBF
KB EMERZERBANF—H
E=EA  |RAKEZNEHESFRM
E o WIREREEE SRR R -
RITH/BINEREREFEALERET
RIEREE ~ SBRIFEVIRITH ©
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25. BB SRIEREFERE

RBEYR - EREZAHHERNE
HFRARENEEHRREDTAT

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Group
xEE
2013 2012
—E—-=%F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AREFIT
Within 3 months =EAR 700,821 336,688
3 to 6 months =& XA 557,186 133,064
6 to 12 months ANE+ZEA 14,017 24,874
1to 2 years —EWF 10,330 13,150
2 to 3 years ME=4F 4,474 3,284
Over 3 years =FE 6,133 4,305
1,292,961 515,365
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ZERNEZFHENENER AR BN
settled within one to six months. BEBEE—=2NEARNEE -

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HibEFTRIE R ESTRRIE
Group Company
FEE b AN

2013 2012 2013 2012
—g-=fF —ZT——F ZB-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFRT ARETT AREFRT ARETC
Advances from customers RE#H 19,376 11,834 - -
Tax and surcharge payables THIE KT 3R 45,247 64,629 - -
Accrued expenses FERTR 15,931 12,333 628 476
Other payables HE b eI 5RIE 102,017 86,463 15,501 3,234
182,571 175,259 16,129 3,710

Other payables and accruals are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

H At JE TR M ERT IR R - %
BRERFEEES -
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

LOANS

Group

2013
—§-=#

27.

Pt BERIT R EMERR

*&EH

2012
—ET-—F

Effective
interest

rate (%)
BRFIE %)

Maturity
L

RMB'000
ARETR

Effective
interest

rate (%)
BIRFIE (%)

Maturity
5

RMB'000
ARETT

Current

Bank loans
- secured

Bank loans
- secured

Other loans
- secured

=

RITER
- R

RITER

— BEH

5.88~7.2

Hong Kong
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“HIBOR")
EEZiHS
EHBIRT
(I EFHERIT
EEZ/H-Y)
+0.95
HIBOR
FERITRERE
+3.5~4
London
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“LIBOR")
RBERTT
BE 3]
(MABERTT
EEZ/H-Y)
+2.5

HAER
— HHEIF 8.20

2014

2014

On demand

Sk

2014

2014

653,700

945

16,903

98,080

100,000

869,628

5.00~7.87

HIBOR
BBIRIT
RIS
+0.95~3.75

2013

2013

865,310

52,044

917,354
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. MBSRITREMERR(E)
LOANS (Continued)
Group (Continued) XEE(B)
2013 2012
—B-=f% —T-F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BEIRHIE (%) Y ARETR  BERAE%) 8 ARETET
Non-current E 1 )|
Bank loans RITER
- secured - REA 5.04~6.15 2015 65,000 5.04~6.34 2014 230,000
5.04 2016 60,000 5.04 2015 15,000
6.88  2015-2022 33,600 688 2014-2022 37,800
Bank loans RITER HIBOR HIBOR
- secured - BE# BRI BIBRIT
FEHE REFE
+0.95 2015-2020 5,143 +0.95 2014-2020 6,280
Other loans HiER LIBOR
- secured - BHE# RBERT
GEZiHCH

+7.83  2015-2018 517,538 -
681,281 289,080

1,550,909 1,206,434
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27.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. MBRITREMER ()
LOANS (Continued)
Company AT
2013 2012
“B-ZF —E-CF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BIRHIE (%) ) ARBTT  EBRFE(%) )5 AREF T
Current it
Bank loans RITER HIBOR HIBOR
- secured - B EHBRT EERIT
HE N BEist
+0.95 2014 945 +0.95~3.75 2013 33,394
Non-current E 1))
Bank loans RITER HIBOR HIBOR
— secured — BiEH EHBRT BBHT
HEZSE FEFE
+0.95 2014-2020 5,143 +0.95 2014-2020 6,280
Other loans EfER LIBOR
— secured — B WELERTT
FEZi,
+7.83 2015-2018 517,538 -
522,681 6,280
523,626 39,674
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. MBRITREMER (E)
LOANS (Continued)
Group Company
EE F. X/ |
2013 2012 2013 2012

—B—-=fF —T——F C"B-=H —T—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRE AREBTT ARETFET ARETT

Analysed into DT BER TR
Bank loans repayable: BB ZRITER :
Within one year —FRQ 769,628 917,354 945 33,394
In the second year FF 70,156 235,172 956 972
In the third to fifth F=FEERF
years, inclusive (BEEEMT) 75,534 30,591 2,934 2,991
Beyond five years AFLAE 18,053 23,317 1,253 2,317
933,371 1,206,434 6,088 39,674
Other loans repayable: RTYIREEE 2
HAMER :
Within one year —FR 100,000 - - -
In the second year F_F 234,515 - 234,515 -
In the third to fifth FZFEERF
years, inclusive (RIEERWE) 283,023 - 283,023 -
Beyond five years AFENUE - - - -
617,538 - 517,538 -
1,550,909 1,206,434 523,626 39,674
Except for those bank loans with interest rates linked with the HIBOR bR A R BEHBIRITRZER B R MMBIRTT
and LIBOR which are denominated in HK$ and US$, respectively, all EZEHF AR IRITER D RIS TR
bank and other loans are denominated in RMB. ETLEHESN - FTERIT REMERG A

ARMEEHE
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by:

(a)

mortgages over the Group’s land and buildings, which had an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB318,655,000 (2012: RMB275,061,000);

mortgages over the Group’s prepaid land lease payments,
which had a carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB93,542,000 (2012: RMB91,604,000);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
RMB27,035,000 (2012: RMB20,000,000);

floating charges over the Company’s receivables from
subsidiaries aggregating to RMB1,120,039,000 (2012: Nil);

floating charges over Singyes Green Investment’s receivables
due from related parties aggregating to RMB251,913,000 (2012:
Nil):

the pledge of equity interests in the following subsidiaries within
the Group:

(i) 75% equity interests in Green Energy Holdings;

(i) 75% equity interests in Zhuhai Singyes;

(i) 90% equity interests in Hunan Green Energy;

(iv)  100% equity interests in Singyes Green Investment,
Singyes Green Technologies, Singyes Engineering,
SunTreasure, Top Access, Basic Force, Green Energy
Investment, Singyes Renewable Energy and Singyes
Energy-saving and;

(v)  the pledge of investment in Weihai China amounting to
RMB11,838,000.

. R ERITREMER (B)

REBEETRITREMERHATEIE
TR -

(a)

REB LI HEREFHNIZIE B
HEMAEMESHOARE
318,655,000 7L(ZF—=F : A
R#275,061,0007T) :

RNEBEBNLHBHEERBENER
B RBEPHREAEHNARE
93,542,000 L (—FE——% : AR
#91,604,0007T) :

AEELEHENETEREREE
B AR #270350007m( = F
——%F : AR¥20,000,0007T) °

AN A e Y X R B e W kIR
&7t AR 1,120,039,0007T (=
T——F  E)AFBHR

LR N E R E Y EIR
RIEA T AR 251,913,000 7T
(ZZT——F : &) ZEHHHFEL
RAEB R THIH B A 7 KR AE
R

(i) FAGreen Energy Holdings #J
75% PR HE

(i) AIREEER 75% IRFE

(i) FOH AR B B2 IR B9 90% Ak
-

vy REZZERE  BF
Wemae BETRE-
SunTreasure * Top Access *
Basic Force 4% & 88 IR %
B - FERTRR K ERE
9 100% et K

(v) EWRNEUSHIIREARY
11,838,000 7T °
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27.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

In addition, the Company’s directors have guaranteed certain of the

Group’s bank and other loans as follows (note 37):

(a)

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei, has guaranteed
the Group’s bank loans of RMB367,000,000 (2012:
RMB280,036,000) free of charge;

the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun
Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
RMB335,000,000 (2012: RMB407,750,000) free of charge;

the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Xie
Wen, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
RMB72,500,000 (2012: Nil) free of charge;

the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun
Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
HK$29,243,000 (2012: HK$71,930,000) free of charge; and

the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun Jinli,
have jointly guaranteed the Group’s other loans with principal of
US$90,000,000 (2012: Nil) free of charge.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s current

interest-bearing bank and other loans approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the Group’s non-current
portion bank and other loans amounting to RMB679,879,000 (2012:
RMB289,929,000). The fair value measurement hierarchy of the above
interest-bearing bank and other loans requires significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3).

i

27. MBRITREMER(E)

BN ARBEERAKEE TRITR
HA &R T 5 AR (BHRE37) -

(@) ALAEFROHLIEERE
ﬁéf%ﬁ‘%@ﬁ”‘%%)\iﬁg
367,000,0007L(=F—=4: A
K 280,036,0007E) ,

(b) ARFREZRMHTERZSE
EEBEARERAEBRT
B 7% A K % 335,000,000 ( =
= — % AR #407,750,000
T

(c) Zl»‘“ﬂ%%%’wilf@?ﬁi&%ﬂiﬁf‘ﬁ
AEEXLRERAEBERITER
AR #72500000t (=5 — =
Fm)

d) ARBEBROHEENFESE
EEBERRAERANERIRTE
29,243,000 T (ZFE— =% -
71,930,000 7T) + &

(e) ARRAEFRIUAMEERFEDR

FEREARBRAKE LM E
X 75 £ $890,000,000% 7T ( =&
——F 8-

BOMRITREMERN AR BEAA
R#679,879,0007t( —ZZE—=—%F: A
R#289,929,0007T)  Eilifft B R7T &
HhERN A BEAEEREBETE
BEATIEBRAHIE(E=E) -
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EEFIA
The movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FRRERBEERGBE2EEHOT ¢

are as follows:

Group *EE
Deferred tax assets IBEHIEEE
Discount in
retention
Government receivables
grants e Total
BURF#HED EiREHI0 wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREETTT ARMETTT

At 1 January 2012 R-ZF——F—H—H 17,216 - 17,216
Deferred tax credited to FRIEEZET AR
profit or loss IEXERITE (F1RE 10)
during the year (note 10) 1,074 - 1,074
At 31 December 2012 and RZF——ZF+A=+—HK
at 1 January 2013 —ET—=%—AF—H 18,290 - 18,290
Deferred tax credited to FREBTET AR
profit or loss REFRIE (Mi7E 10)
during the year (note 10) 1,099 2,109 3,208
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+=-A=+—H 19,389 2,109 21,498
Deferred tax assets of RMB19,389,000 (2012: RMB18,290,000) in IRAEFITEE B AR # 19,389,000 T (=
respect of unreleased government grants (note 29) were recognised. T——F: AR¥18,290,0007T) Ak

1R M AR ET A ZS B U R /O DR A8 B (B &E
29) MHER °
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28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

28. BEBLIE (4F)

Group FEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE
Withholding
taxes
EinH
RMB’000
ARBTT
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—H—H 37,771
Deferred tax charged to FRIEBINBRAELERE (3 10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) 20,726
At 31 December 2012 and RZZE—=—F+=ZA=+—HK
at 1 January 2013 —ET—=F—HF—H 58,497
Deferred tax charged to FREBTINGRAELERE (3 10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) 28,363
At 31 December 2013 R—ZE—=%+=-_A=+—H 86,360

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations in the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China effective
from 1 January 2008. Under the Arrangement between Mainland
China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the
Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with
respect to Taxes on Income, the withholding tax rate for dividends paid
by a Mainland resident enterprise to a Hong Kong resident enterprise
is 5% if the Hong Kong enterprise owns at least 25% of the Mainland
enterprise. As a result, deferred tax liabilities of RMB28,363,000
(2012: RMB20,726,000) regarding withholding income tax on the
distributable earnings (future dividend) of Zhuhai Singyes and Singyes
Renewable Energy, subsidiaries invested by Singyes Green Investment,
which is the Company’s subsidiary registered in Hong Kong, have been
provided for the year.

BEHRBEMERBAINER AT
NF—A—Bi8 - TR BRI
BRENMIEREESTIRRE - B
W 10% FEHHE o B 15 AP B K e 258
5 BT B [ B A 0 i o S AN B 1
R LE - MESLESLEAF
B K BoE 1 2 05% M AR - 1 AR B K BE
EREEMFEAEROENREHE
MMERS% - Bt - NFE - KA
ERARRIREBELHMNB R R EE
FERARMEENNBARKEEER
T ERA A IR B F (RRRE)
ZEHMAERAIREEHEBEEEBEAR
08363000 T(—E——%F : ARK
20,726,0007T) °
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29. DEFERRED INCOME 29. BEWZR
2013 2012
—®—-=F T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Government grants BT )

At 1 January n—A—H 230,075 114,771

Government grants related to assets ~ FREUWERE EH R BUIT BN
received during the year 378,138 118,472
Released to profit or loss (note 5) B0 =18%5 (MFE5) (53,169) (3,168)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 555,044 230,075

Deferred income represented government grants received by the Group
in respect of the construction of roof top solar farms under the “Golden
Sun Program”, and other items of property, plant and equipment

BEWSEASEFABMAER A
(BRETE2] TEEAGEE A
WME -~ WE KRREERE mUE A BUT

during the year. B o
The deferred income is released to profit or loss at the annual FEWREFESEEREER - A
instalment to match with the expected useful lives of the relevant AIEBEENTEHFEARFR -
assets.
30. ISSUED CAPITAL 30. EETIRAE
Shares B
2013 2012
—E-=% —T——F
US$’000 US$’000
FET FEr
Authorised: VETE
1,200,000,000 ordinary shares 1,200,000,000 B &A% HEI1E 0.01 7T
of US$0.01 each EOR=E ] 12,000 12,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREHT
691,824,996 (2012: 632,861,997) 691,824,996 & (= ——4F :
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each 632,861,997 %) & FI{E0.01
FITHE AR 6,918 6,329
Equivalent to RMB'000 TraARETT 46,247 42,606
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30. ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued) 30. EEITIRA ()
During the year, the movements in issued capital were as follows: RER - BEITRAZEHINT -
Number of Issued
shares in issue capital
EETIRMEE EETIRAE
RMB’000
ARBT T
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—HA—H 525,633,332 35,841
Issue of shares BITIRM 105,126,666 6,633
Share options exercised 1TEEE A 2,101,999 132
At 31 December 2012 and NZE—=—F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2013 r—ZFE—=F—H—H 632,861,997 42,606
Issue of shares BITRR D (a) 40,000,000 2,454
Share options exercised 1T ARIE (b) 18,962,999 1,187
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=-A=+—AH 691,824,996 46,247
(@ On 12 November 2013, the Company entered into a placing (a9 W=ZZE—=F+—A+=H 'K
agreement with Strong Eagle and BOCI Asia Limited (the “Placing ‘A ) B Strong Eagle & /1 R B B§
Agent”), pursuant to which the Placing Agent agreed to place TMNBRAFT(EERIE]D T
on behalf of Strong Eagle, on a fully underwritten basis, and ThREwE Bl BRERER
Strong Eagle agreed to sell 40,000,000 existing shares at a price & X K Strong Eagle % = | & 4
of HK$8.10 per share. On 22 November 2013, the Company H % i & K Strong Eagle Rl & H
issued 40,000,000 new shares under the general mandate, £ 40,000,000 (%3 B B« Ei
which were fully subscribed by Strong Eagle at the same price of BER8IOE T RZZTE—=4F
HK$8.10 per share. +—AZ+=H  ARFARE—

#% 4 % 7740,000,000 % F %
5 » JhH Strong Eagle I2 AR (&
=8 10 B T RERE -

(b)  The subscription rights attaching to 13,162,999 share options (b) 13,162,999 7 B % #E £ M 75 2 372
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$3.58 per share BREERREEEIR3L8BITE

and 5,800,000 share options were exercised at the subscription 77 i % 5,800,000 5 B8 P& # B B

price of HK$2.78 per share (note 31), resulting in the issue of B RBEDIERBESR2.78
18,962,999 shares with a par value of US$0.01 each. BT EITEE (FIFE31) « BEETT
18,962,999 I E{E A£0.01 &L 2

Bt e
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. EBltERTEl
The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the ARRIRMERERTE ([%ErE D 2R
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants TREAEENKINEE ML BRNE
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible B2 EERMEE B ER - ZFTENE
participants of the Scheme include directors and employees of the BERZ2HEERIFEERAEEES - %
Group. The Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on FERZEENF+ AT LBELRR
19 December 2008 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will AR - BRIEM RS EER] - B A
remain in force for 10 years from that date. ZETEIZ B R RIF T ERRUT -
The maximum number of unexercised share options currently B A FFIRIERZ AT B R B A R T AR
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, EmEmEE AESER (FEETFER) N
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue NAREREBEEITRGD 210% °
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share FME AR+ {[& 7 A ) BT AR BE B AR A 1)
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month BRAEERSHERTNRaRHOEE
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any TIRRFA A A BRI A B B 1 TRR 1
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject 1% o [EfABH LR FE A — IR BB
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. AR ZEAC IR R IR R RS L& -
Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial BRTYTARAES  THAEHITER
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject R BEEAMBEATCERE B
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. AEREBEIIFNTES 2HE - Ik
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or AN AMER+ (@A BB AR T AR R
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of FTERRNBIEHITEE - HEEE
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in BB A T 2 (ERIERRKE - LBBRAA
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the AR 2 817D 2 0.1% sk H
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, BEBREBEARRRFE L BB REST
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders, approval in & )R8 5,000,000 77T + HARIRER
advance in a general meeting. g LEARGREZHE -
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days BRI E , ZHHRARABEZNR
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of B -+ N \HARSARBARES
RMBL1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options HAREITEEN - IR HEREZ
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a THEREEET WREFEMFEZ
vesting period of 0.5 to 2 years and ends on a date which is a period of FEHERrZaRE BERTRTF

10 years from the date of grant. ZB&IE -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,

but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing

price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options;

(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares

for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)

the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to

vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during

the year:

31.

Bt El (&)

BREZTEERESEE  EATE
RUAT&=E : () ARBBRMORBAHE
EHRMERIHZETE () AR
AR R EEEN R AERS B E
Bt 3P 2 W AE ¢ R (i) B D 2
&

FERHE L N TR A ER IR B A AR
RARE LIRERER -

FRZTEI TRARITEZBRENT

2013 2012
—T-=f —T-—fF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
InHEEL of options hntEF15 of options
TEE BRERE TEE EhiEEE
HK$ '000 HK$ '000

per share per share
BiRET T BRET T
At 1 January m—A—H 3.29 42,330 3.97 37,027
Granted during the year FRFEL - - - -
Forfeited during the year FRERE 3.58 (348) - -
Adjusted during the year FRFE - - 331 7,405
Exercise during the year FRNTITE 3.34 (18,963) 3.58 (2,102)
At 31 December w+—-—A=+—H 3.25 3.29 42330

23,019
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. RERztEstEl (8)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options R EAREARITEBEREITEER
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: TTEEAAT
As at 31 December 2013 N=¥—=%#+=-HA=+—H
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
IBREEE TiE(E 1TiEHA
’000 HK$ per share
T3 SikET
3,523 3.58 23/01/10-22/07/19

—E-ETF-A=Z+=HE

—E-nFEA=Z+=H

4,263 3.58 23/07/10-22/07/19
—E-EFLAZ+=HZE

—F-hFtA=+=H

6,633 3.58 23/07/11-22/07/19
“E——FtA-+=HZ%

—E-nFEAZ+=H

216 2.78 27/05/11-26/05/20
—ET——FARA=-+tHZE

—E-EFRA-1+XH

592 2.78 27/05/12-26/05/20
—ET——FRAA=-+tHZE

—EZEFRAZ+RH

592 2.78 27/05/13-26/05/20
—ET—=FRAA=-+tHZE

—EZTFRAZ+RH

1,440 2.68 11/10/12-10/10/21
—ET——F+A+—H=

—E—F+A+H

1,440 2.68 11/10/13-10/10/21
—E—=Ft+A+—HZE

—E-—F+A+H

1,440 2.68 11/10/14-10/10/21
—ET-mNFE+A+—H=

—E=—F+A+H

1,440 2.68 11/10/15-10/10/21
—E-RF+A+—HZE

—E=—F+A+H

1,440 2.68 11/10/16-10/10/21
—E—RF+A+—HZE

—ZE=—F+A+H

23,019
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. MRz tEsTEl (8)
As at 31 December 2012 RW—ZE——F+-_A=+—H
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
RS A 1TR(E TR A
'000 HK$ per share
T BRET
8,262 3.58 23/01/10-22/07/19

“E2-FTF—A-_+=H=ZE

—E-NFtA=Z+=H

9,672 3.58 23/07/10-22/07/19
—E-ZTFLA-+Z=HZE

—E-NFtA=Z+=H

9,996 3.58 23/07/11-22/07/19
—E——FtA=-+=H=E

—E-NFtA=Z+=H

2,400 2.78 27/05/11-26/05/20
—ET——FAHA=-+tHZE

—E-ZEFRA=+NH

2,400 2.78 27/05/12-26/05/20
—ET——FRAA=-+tHZE

—E-ZEFRA=+NH

2,400 2.78 27/05/13-26/05/20
—ET—=FRAA=-+tHZE

—ZE-TFRAA=+"H

1,440 2.68 11/10/12-10/10/21
—ET——F+RA+—H=

—E-—%+A+H

1,440 2.68 11/10/13-10/10/21
—E—=F+A+—H=

—E-—%+A+H

1,440 2.68 11/10/14-10/10/21
—ET-NFE+A+—H=Z

T —F+A+H

1,440 2.68 11/10/15-10/10/21
—E-RF+A+—H=E

—E—F+A+H

1,440 2.68 11/10/16-10/10/21
e N e

== G oSl

42,330
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. MERstERtEl (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 23,019,000 share RBEBR AQEIREZTE B
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the 23,019,000 17 M AR T REARHE © 25
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure RITE BN BUETTE - FEARFA
of the Company, result in the issue of 23,019,000 additional ordinary ZIBFEREET - B eEHEEINETT
shares of the Company and additional share capital of US$230,190 23,019,000 A& AN 2 &) @ Ak I 2= AR RE A
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,785,469) and share premium of A& 78 230,190 % 7t (FHE 7 49 1,785,469
approximately HK$108,332,127 (before issue expenses). BT ) KR 5 5% B £ 108,332,127 8 7T

(RBREITRED)

As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the Company RAFERERAAER » ARQRIREZ
had 21,062,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which £ 21,062,000 13 M AT AENAE - 4B
represented approximately 3.04% of the Company’s shares in issue as ERARARINZA R ETRD493.04% °
at that date.
32. RESERVES 32. fi#iE

Group XEE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for AEBARFRBAFE 2 FHEeENIE
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement AEHHANVBERREIOEEETLE

of changes in equity on pages 70 to 71 of the financial statements. ITEHEREERNA -
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

Group (Continued)
Statutory reserves of the PRC subsidiaries

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using
Chinese and Foreign Investment” and the respective articles
of association of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China,
appropriations from net profit, as determined in accordance with PRC
generally accepted accounting principles (“PRC GAAP”) and after
offsetting accumulated losses from prior years, should be made to the
statutory reserve fund and the enterprise expansion fund, and before
profit distributions to the investors. The reserve fund can be used
to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital. The enterprise
expansion fund can be used for business development or to increase
capital. The percentages to be appropriated to the reserve fund and the
enterprise expansion fund in the foreign investment subsidiaries are
determined by the board of directors. In addition, the wholly-foreign-
owned subsidiaries are not required to appropriate the enterprise
expansion fund, and the percentages to be appropriated to the reserve
fund shall be no less than 10%. When the cumulative reserve fund
reaches one-half of the registered capital, the appropriation is no
longer mandatory.

Difference arising from acquisition of non-controlling interests

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Singyes Energy-saving
and Xi'an Zhongrun Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Zhongrun”), on 7 June
2013, Singyes Energy-saving acquired a 40% equity interest in Singyes
Photovoltaic from Xi'an Zhongrun, the non-controlling shareholder
of Singyes Photovoltaic, at a consideration of RMB8,000,000. The
difference of RMB1,079,000 arising from the acquisition of non-
controlling interest in Singyes Photovoltaic was recognised as reserve.

32. fi#fE ()

FRE(E)
o BB 2 FIA T (R

RE(PEARKMBEFINEELE R
FR)RAEEEHBEARENRE AR
REER - AERRBRHEAR LR
([HPEARESFER ) EEMFR (K
HEEFRFERR  KRRREEDIK
MEHED) B AEREEE RERER
EE - RREES A RAREERFER
FIRMEAR - EEBRESAANER
HRIYIBMER - SNEMBARBNE
REEHEESNECEBERESNANLHE

GEE © SN ANEBE L EEAR
MABNECERRES  MENER
BESNANLER/TIRN10% - RERE
AR daEMEA—+K - TF
SRR o

W e E L 2 ZERR

BIRE AR EEEEGR AR
(TAaREB DRIz —BiHE - RZT
—=FRAtA - BESREUREAR
#£ 8,000,000 7T [F] # 2 3¢ & 6 FE 4 AR AR
R AU B LB 40% FRIE o
Et - W BRI R E S EL
2 EFAREL,079,0007THER A -
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32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. it (&)
Company AAT
The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the movements therein REARBEFE  KAGFESER
for the current and prior years are as follows: T
Share Exchange
Share option fluctuation
premium Contributed reserve reserve  Accumulated
account surplus RRlIE B losses Total
Rt (ERR L ON:1 1] HEN IR RitisiE st

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETR ARETRT  ARETR

At 31 December 2011 RZZ——%F
and 1 January 2012 +=A=+—H

RZZE-ZfF
—H—H 391,169 13,669 46,685 (24,800) (99,231) 327,492
Total comprehensive ~ ANFEZEBIEEE
loss for the year - - - 45 (13,269) (13,224)
Exercise of share 1TlERERE
options 5991 - - - - 5,991

Transfer to share option TERERIEREE X
reserve upon the BRREGE

exercise of share

options 2,455 - (2,455) - - -
Issue of bonus issue  ALAREEFT - (6,633) - - - (6,633)
Proposed final 2012~ #E—E——F

dividend (note 12) AR E (5T 12) - - - - (35,921) (35,921)
Equity-settled RAE BRI EL

share option (F37E31)

arrangements

(note 31) - - 4314 - - 4314
At 31 December 2012 R=Z—=F

and 1 January2013 +=A=1—8H

k=2—=%
—H—H 399,615 7,036 48,544 (24,755) (148,421) 282,019

Total comprehensive ~ AFE2HEEBAT

loss for the year - - - (12,678) (15,968) (28,646)
Issue of shares 1R 1n (HEE30)

(note 30) 246,051 - - - - 246,051
Exercise of share id-te

options 49,870 - - - - 49,870
Transfer to share option 1T{RERIEREBE

reserve upon the BRERE

exercise of share

options 22,488 - (22,488) - - -
Transfer to contributed EBEI SN B

surplus (40,000) 40,000 - - - -
Final 2012 dividend ~ $tR=Z—_—FKH

declared (note 12) A& (MizE12) - (36,847) = = 35,921 (926)
Proposed final 2013 #tE—Z—=FRH

dividend (note 12) S (Mt 12) - - - - (48,954) (48,954)

Equity-settled share ~ BRAGEE BB
option arrangements %k (FizE31)
(note 31) - - 2,112 - - 2,112

At 31 December 2013 R=—Z—=4%
b= —H 678,024 10,189 28,168 (37,433) (177,422) 501,526




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZR-SFFR PRERAXKHERMIERER AR

BAFE ¥R YRt

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+=-A=+—8H

33.

34.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

During the year, the Group established a subsidiary, Green Energy
Holdings, together with Benefit Partner Investment Corp (“Benefit
Partner”), which is an independent third party and holds a 25% equity
interest in Green Energy Holdings.

During the year, the Group established a subsidiary, Wuwei Dongrun,
with East Environment Energy Technology Co., Ltd., which is an
independent third party and holds a 10% equity interest in Wuwei
Dongrun.

As at 31 December 2013, non-controlling interests represented the
25% equity interest in Green Energy Holdings and the 10% equity
interest in Wuwei Dongrun.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2013, the bank and other loans of
RMB659,500,000 (2012: RMB464,110,000) granted to Zhuhai
Singyes, the bank and other loans of US$16,000,000 (2012: Nil)
granted to Zhuhai Singyes, bank and other loans of RMB25,000,000
(2012: RMB25,000,000) to Singyes Renewable Energy and the bank
and other loans of HK$21,500,000 (2012: HK$23,000,000) granted to
Singyes Engineering were guaranteed by the Company.

33.

34.

FiTle s

FN - ANEE B — %5 3% = 77 Benefit
Partner Investment Corp ([ Benefit Partner |)
X 37 M B /A 7] Green Energy Holdings * %t
7758 Green Energy HoldingsH25% A% ©

RER AEER-E2BYFE=7IR
RBREMBEROERARKIZMER
ARERE - $ARBEREREN 10%
P

R-B—=F+_-A=+—08 - FEER
HEZSHE T Green Energy Holdings #)25%
A e A B SRR Y 10% I -

HARMR

RZB—=F+-"A=+—H " K&£H
WmERNAREE o

RZEBE—=F+_A=+—0 - 12
FHEREZRITREMERARE
659,500,000 (=T ——F : AR
464,110,0007T) * B FIRGEZE 2
817 & H ftb & 3 16,000,000% T ( =
T—_F:m) RETEERER
ZR1T R EH A E 5k A R # 25,000,000
T(ZT—Z=F: AR%25000,000
TORRETFERETRZRITREM
B 721,500,000 L( =& — = F :
23,000,0007% 7T ) ThERZAR A AIHELR o
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35. EEHERH

fERZIEAN

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessee

AEBERBEEENLHFEARETHA
=Y - REYWEROGEERM A X
MF - RIBEHRR - ARERER T
FHBIHH T AR LSRN RK S

The Group leases certain of its office premises under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of one or
two years. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows: EEMAHe@ENT
2013 2012
—T-=f —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBEFIT
Within one year —FRQ 876 940
In the second to fifth years, inclusive #_ZFhF (BFEEEMFE) 557 -
1,433 940

36. COMMITMENTS 36. KiE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 35
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

B £ S R 35 FF il 2 S AR A AHE S
RBER - NEEEA THIEAHRIE

2013 2012
—T-=f —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ANREFTT

Contracted, but not provided for: BETAVBAREAE -
Buildings BT 2,623 -
Machinery WL AR 1,608 4,467
4,231 4,467
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(@) Related party transactions

As at 31 December 2013, guarantees provided by related parties

of the Group are as follows:

(i)

(iii)

the Group’s bank loans of RMB367,000,000 (2012:
RMB280,036,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei
free of charge;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB335,000,000 (2012:
RMB407,750,000) were guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu
Hongwei and Sun Jinli free of charge;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB72,500,000 (2012: Nil)
were guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Xie
Wen free of charge;

the Group’s bank loans of HK$29,243,000 (2012:
HK$71,930,000) were guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu
Hongwei and Sun Jinli free of charge; and

the Group’s other loans with principal of US$90,000,000
(2012: Nil) were guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu
Hongwei and Sun Jinli free of charge.

(a)

37. FEA X HRE&ER

FAERR S

RZZE—=F+=ZRA=+—8"

S

(1)

(iii)

EEES R ERET

AEBZRITERARYE
367,000,000t ( =& — =
F: A R #280,036,000
TT)MBAEEEEERE
*

AEBZRITERARK
335,000,000t ( =& — =
F: A R #407,750,000
TU) BBAT SR E R A RS
A EERRER

AEBZBITERARE
72,500,0007t( = F — =
F M) R BIAT AT A R
XA BEARER

AEEZRITER
29,243,000 8L (=F—=
% : 71,930,000/ 7T) A 2l
Mgt E RESE T ERE
HEER R

AN 5= B 7R %6 7%90,000,000
E(ZE—=F:8E)Z
HitvE R SIAL 4 55 4 R
ERELBELRER -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 37. AERRSRER (E)
BALANCES (Continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) FREEEEEASHIHN
Group
2013 2012
—E—-=5 T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETTT
Salaries, allowances and e o EBIREYAE
benefits in kind 5,006 3,678

Pension scheme contributions R IREFHEI R 112 87

5,118 3,765
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments BEEESERITHAEHMSAE—
are included in note 8 to the financial statements. BB SRR 8 o

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. AR5 E IR EIE H R RBUR
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest- AEENFTESRTEARENERITR
bearing bank and other loans and cash and cash equivalents. The EMEZERERESEEBY - %2
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the MTANTFERGEARERNRKESE
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and £E8e  AEBEEREEMERERE
liabilities such as trade and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits LKBE: & EAETEEELNE
and other receivables, trade and bills payables, other payables and WESHBREKEE - JAN7IE -~ 5]
accruals, which arise directly from its operations. S REMEWEZIE ENESHIENRE

NEE - AR RIE LB R -

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are REBSMTAMEE ZEZRK AR
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. REK - INERE - EERER LREE
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each SRR EFSERLEEETIESER

of these risks and they are summarised below. WHIECR - BRABCRBIMAT -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MR E I EE BB R EBUR

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in the market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and variable rate debts. In addition, the Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge against interest rate risk. At 31 December
2013, approximately 58.8% (2012: 70.1%) of the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other loans bore interest at fixed rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate

&)
Fll 2= B

REBFEGHM SN EEFHAMRTR
EAEENRHATEEBER

AEBMZBRANARBRTEEBE
BEAMSMAZ - BN REBLAE
FAAEATF SR 1 B LA SR R R @S o A
E-—ZF+-_A=Z+—H8 AEEYH
58.8% (ZZF—Z=4F : 70.1%) 2 [ B.5F
IREMEFIRE T FEGTE o

TRERAEEH AN CERETR
ERZEE)ENEAREEED 26
BE - HEERE -

loans).

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax
i, BiaizaF
(iR) BEh i (R)
RMB’000
ARETT

2013 —T—=F
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (230)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 230
US dollar ETT 100 (6,156)
US dollar i (100) 6,156

2012 =
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (583)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 583
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MR E I EE BB R EBR

AND POLICIES (Continued) (#&)

Foreign currency risk HphEs RIS

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise AEEPRERZFEERR - Z5RRKK
from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the B LA BB NI S AINEEE (B
units’ functional currencies. WEE -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TREMBNET  RFITTRETEE
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$, MOP WA IEEE)  HHMEHRETE
and US$ exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the KB T » HAEERRE BRHOBRT
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary AEA (EREEEERABEZALE
assets and liabilities). There is no impact on the Group’s equity. BEE) NEKEDIT - AEBE#E=R

7 18| | B2, 45
EIR R .

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in profit

currency rate before tax

B B #t B g Fl

17 (TR (R

% RMB’000

% AREETTT

2013 —E-=F
If RMB weakens against HK$ i ARHE W B TR B 5 418
If RMB strengthens against HK$ AR K ETIHE (5) (418)
If RMB weakens against US$ WARBHEITRZE 5 (3,274)
If RMB strengthens against US$ i AR R ETTHE (5) 3,274
If RMB weakens against MOP i AR HRFI TR (E 5 7
If RMB strengthens against MOP i AR ¥ HRPITTHHE (5) (7)
2012 —ETF

If RMB weakens against HK$ WARBHBTRZE 5 (2,976)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ i AR BT HE (5) 2,976
If RMB weakens against US$ i AR B E Tz E 5 182
If RMB strengthens against US$ fig ARHE 2T HHE (5) (182)
If RMB weakens against EUR fi ARHE K BT R (B 5 3

If RMB strengthens against EUR g AR BT AHE (5) 3)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. ﬁﬁ‘%ﬁlﬁ"‘ﬂﬁﬂ’]&iﬁ%

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade and other receivables, and other financial assets represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
held in major financial institutions located in Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 22.6% and 41.4% (2012: 11.3% and
27.2%) of the Group’s trade and bills receivables were due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers, respectively.
All of these customers have good credit quality by taking into
account of their credit history, and a long-term business relationship
has been established by both parties. The Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and monitoring
procedures to ensure that there will be follow-up action to recover
overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the settlement from customers and the payment to vendors.

&)
{EEE g

RekALEEY AR FH - B5K
HibEUHIR - REMEREENRE
fﬁ1&%§$ﬁlﬁﬁ7¥®:§ﬂ BEERBDN

SiEERRE Z!S’%liﬁjiy%@%i&

i%@%dﬂ EEERREEAREER
RPEREAR SREERE -

AERERERAIRZAEENE =S
ARG o AEEBBERZ  RIEHIZ

ERERRZNEFPAKLBERRER

B e tbsh - EUGRIRERER IS BT
MANEE AR H R RRERILAEKX

RIEER - AERGFEE TEEST
ERE  TZEHRAEERKASEE
BARFRAXBFHEREZER
EWZ=IE D BIE22.6% K 41.4% (=&
—ZF 1 113% K27.2%) c EiBE K&
ZERPNEEREY  IBRSEFPY
BEROMNEEE R A¥AEREYEK
HIMEBBER - ARECZR— X EK
EEETREERBRERRER  UER
AR AU B TB) I B HR R o

RENE 2 EE

AEEEARRADESTEITAL
HESREROER - ZTAFTMHEDRE
TANRSREE (FINEKE ST
AR CEEBR SR
=o
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AEENRHESTERRANEE SR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MR E I EE BB R EBR

AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of PRSI - AR EFTHE RN
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, o AKESRBEINBHERAT
is as follows:
Group XEHE
3 toless
than 12
Less than months 1to5 Beyond
On demand 3 months =ZEDR years 5 years Total
REXE  PR=EA +=f@A —ERE AFUE it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETR
Asat31 December ~RZZT—=%
2013 +ZA=+-H
Interest-bearing M EETREMER
bank and other
loans 16,904 123,873 795,187 761,012 20,662 1,717,638
Trade and bills ENESHIER
payables ENER 285,728 510,910 496,323 - - 1,292,961
Other payables HiEER
and accruals [EETHUE 106,832 - - - - 106,832
409,464 634,783 1,291,510 761,012 20,662 3,117,431
Asat31 December ~ MZZ—_F
2012 +-A=+—
Interest-bearing bt BRITER
bank loans 18,650 317,905 602,436 297313 24,073 1,260,377
Trade and bills ERNESHER
payables ENRE 136,971 113,254 265,140 - - 515,365
Other payables Hib (5B R
and accruals JEEIFUE 89,832 = = = = 89,832
245,453 431,159 867,576 297,313 24,073 1,865,574
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  38. M EMEEBN REE
AND POLICIES (Continued) &)
Company V. /N
3 toless
than 12
Less than months 1to5 Beyond
On demand 3 months =EDR years 5 years Total
REXE  OR=EA +=@A —-ERfE EEUE it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
Asat31 December ~ RZZ—Z=%F
2013 +ZA=1-H
Interest-bearing M2 RTREMER
bank and other loans - 253 28,668 605,074 1,263 635,258
Other payables HinERNHIER
and accruals JEEH SR 16,129 - - - - 16,129
Guarantees givento  [MERTTIEHAY
banks in BEETHE
connection with ARETMER
loans granted to
subsidiaries 16,904 123,620 564,871 155,938 19,399 880,732
33,033 123,873 593,539 761,012 20,662 1,532,119
Asat31 December ~ RZZ—_F
2012 +ZA=+—H
Interest-bearing B BERITE R
bank loans - 261 33,984 4,180 2,351 40,776
Other payables HitERFIER
and accruals fEE TR 3,710 - - - - 3710
Guarantees givento  TISRITIEHA
banks in BRRTHE
connection with ARETMER
loans granted to
subsidiaries 18,650 163,500 235,610 105,000 - 522,760
22,360 163,761 269,594 109,180 2o 567,246
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MR E I EE BB R EBR

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s objectives of its capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by
pricing services and products commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises interest-
bearing bank and other loans, trade and bills payables, other payables
and accruals and tax payable, less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. Total equity comprises owners’ equity and non-
controlling interests as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted
by the Group include, but are not limited to, reviewing future cash
flow requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of capital to
support its business. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

(#&)
BEXER

REBNEAEEBBRRREAEERF
BIEEE N ABCRAEE BIGREE
P E R S E AL M SRR E R AR A -
I 388 SR R K AR B B IR TS I EE am Y
FEEBRBIREH R SR -

REBMZRABRLOIHTERSE - A%
EEREEREB IR R ERRE
REEEENRBRSHINARAR - 5T
HRNABRERER  AEEARD
RBREMRESE  MREREER
BT E B EDURE -

REBERLLRERER  ZUHLER
FEF R DA SRR S IFETS %%%@
EMBRITREMER  BNES

MEMNRE - EiﬁEE§¢¢nAIEZiFEu+nA
AR BN - RRE RIREFEYIA
FREMER - R BREA MR
P PTERO P & s M ORI B AR

AR B KBS ERITERL R EREN
BAOKF - AFFEER - AEBERR
M ERERIFETRREMAKE D
MEBERMINAEEEBEES - REF
ARARITREES KT R BHERE
EMBEB(NFR) - UERAEE
BAAEKFHNERIIFEER - N
HERRERL S
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MR E I EE BB R EBUR

AND POLICIES (Continued) &)

Group XEE
2013 2012
—E—=% —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Interest-bearing bank and other loans Ff 2 8R1T M E A EFK 1,550,909 1,206,434
Trade and bills payables FERTE 5 F0E KB RIR 1,292,961 515,365
Other payables and accruals E RS 5B N AT R 182,571 175,259
Tax payable FERTEIE 33,276 26,140
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BREeERAEEEY (894,732) (698,088)
Less: Pledged deposits W IR (346,522) (214,820)
Net debt SEES 1,818,463 1,010,290
Total equity R 2,599,112 1,845,070
Total equity and net debt B NORETS 4,417,575 2,855,360

Gearing ratio B & 41% 35%
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39.

40.

41.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 August 2013, the framework agreement (the “Agreement”)
was entered into between China Solar Power Group Ltd. (“CSPG"), a
subsidiary of United Photovoltaics Group Limited (previously known as
Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited), a company listed in the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and the Company.
Pursuant to the Agreement, it is proposed that CSPG will acquire, or
together with other parties jointly acquire, from the Group the entire
equity interest of project companies which own certain completed roof-
top solar power plants with an aggregate electricity generation capacity
of approximately 100MW by the end of the first quarter of 2014,
subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions precedent (the “Proposed
Transaction”).

As at 28 March 2014, CSPG and the Company (together, the “Parties”)
could not reach mutual consensus on certain conditions precedent
of the Proposed Transaction and no definitive sale and purchase
agreement will be entered into. The Parties mutually agreed to cease
the Proposed Transaction and the Agreement shall cease to be in
effect. Both parties have agreed that all obligations of the Parties under
the Agreement shall cease and neither party shall have any claim or
demand against the other party.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The presentation of certain items in the financial statements has been
revised to comply with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 28 March 2014.

39.

40.

41.
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